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a unique
brand of
awesome

Mission Statement
We aim to be the leading brand development and
management company, improving the lifestyles of our
customers through our distinctive branded conceptual
products and services, and continuously striving to
achieve growth, profitability and shareholder value.
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Our Brands

About LifeBrandz Ltd.
LIFEBRANDZ is a brand development and management group that specialises
in the lifestyle and entertainment sectors, leveraging on it’s core competency
in developing new and exciting brands. The group was established in 2001
and has been listed in Singapore since 2004.
In FY2006, LIFEBRANDZ focused on the development of the lifestyle business,
catering to the trendsetters in Singapore, quickly establishing itself as one of
the most dynamic and fastest growing players in the region.
FY2014 has brought about interesting progress to the group. Fenix Room
has since established itself as one of the top VIP nightclubs in Singapore and
continues to attract discerning partygoers. Hopdog, an American diner inspired
bar that specialises in gourmet hotdogs and craft beer has also been added to
the brand portfolio – yet another addition to the group’s selection of hip and
premium offerings.
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Incredible venues to see and be seen,
overflowing with the coolest people
and the most amazing party
atmosphere in town.

Hopdog
Hotdogs and Ice-cold beer! Hopdog is an American diner inspired bar that
serves up freshly grilled gourmet hotdogs and a large range (over a hundred!)
of bottled craft beers. This casual dining bar offers guests a wonderful
atmosphere to kick it and knock back a few pints while sinking their teeth
into one of our sizzling, juicy hotdogs.
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Making good on our promise to bring
the best and most exciting mix of
entertainment and leisure.

AQUANOVA
Aquanova is best described as a high energy live music restaurant and bar. In the evening, the venue offers a selection of seafood
inspired dinner items as well as light bites for consumers to dine and wine right by the iconic Clarke Quay fountain. As the night
progresses, the indoor area transforms into an energetic live entertainment club with high octane band performances by resident
8-piece band the A-list as well as DJ sets by some of the industry’s best. The venue is constructed with the stage as a focal point
so that customers don’t miss a moment of every night’s dynamic performance.
Dream
Dream is dance club that offers guests premium service in big room environment. With a stage that spans about 11 meters and
a DJ console that is raised slightly above the dancefloor, Dream caters to both the groups of customers that enjoy raving with the
many on the floor or grooving with a select few at their own lush sofa table.
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Exclusive enclaves for the ultimate
party indulgence, where nonstop
decadence is the order of the day!

FENIX ROOM
Fenix Room is reminiscent of lavish lounges of the Roaring Twenties with
delicate touches of contemporary designs.
Dedicated to the champagne culture, Fenix Room boasts a collection of
premium champagnes, and provides unique champagnes serving rituals
to the discerning revellers.
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Letter to Shareholders
The Group will continue to be vigilant in
monitoring closely the operating landscape
and the overall business environment.

On

behalf of the Board of
Directors, I am pleased to
present the annual report for LifeBrandz
Ltd (the Group) for the financial year
ended 31 July 2014 (FY2014).
This is my first presentation of the
Group’s annual report and I feel humbled
and privileged to be able to share with
you the performance of the Group and
my thoughts on how we, the Board
and management, can and will bring it
forward to sustainable growth.
I was appointed CEO of the Group on
1 December 2013. I am humbled by
the trust placed on me by the Board.
I will strive to work with the Board,
management and staff and our partners
to advance the business of the Group
so as to achieve consistent revenue and
profit growth and deliver stable returns
to shareholders.
Group revenue for FY2014 fell 10 per
cent to S$22.0 million from S$24.4
million in the previous financial year.
The lower revenue could be attributed
to lower business volume caused by
the restriction on liquor licensing hours
imposed by the authorities and our
revamping and cessation of certain
outlets as part of our continuous
process to re-position and introduce
new concepts. The entry of new
establishments in the lifestyle and
entertainment industry added to the
competition to attract a finite pool
of revellers in a crowded market.
Nevertheless, the performance of
our established concepts like Mulligan’s
and Fenix Room remained healthy and
was able to provide significant support
to operating revenue.

Given the challenging operating
environment in FY2014, we have strived
to control and manage direct operating
expenses appropriately by improving
productivity and enhancing operations
efficiency. Hence, employee benefits
dropped by 11% to S$7.3 million due
to wage credit grants received and
astute redeployment of staff. Rental
of operating leases held steady at
S$5.1 million. Contract services, the
bulk of which were security services
decreased by 12% to S$344,000 as
we reduced and better managed security
for the respective outlets at Clarke Quay.
During the same period, the Group
also ramped up promotion activities to
sustain traffic volume. This necessitated
a 3% increase in advertising, media and
entertainment expenses to S$3.1 million.
Amortisation and depreciation increased
to S$2.4 million which included
amortisation of S$1.1 million from
intangible assets acquired in FY2013.
Overall expenses for the FY2014
reached S$28.8 million, up 19% from
S$24.2 million in the preceding year
due partially to higher impairment
loss on fixed assets and receivables
amounting to S$3.14 million, inclusive
of the provision of S$1.2 million for
impairment loss in respect of
intangible assets arising from the
cessation of the Mink and Royal Room
collaboration projects.

The Group will continue to be vigilant
in monitoring closely the operating
landscape and the overall business
environment and will implement
pro-active measures to improve business
performance and reduce costs.
We have and will continuously adopt
various means to strengthen our
brands by innovating new concepts to
cater to wider range of lifestyle tastes
and preferences of a more discerning
consumer base. In this respect we will
be upgrading and renovating selected
outlets so as to introduce improved
looks and fresh ambience.
At the same time, we will adopt a
hard-headed approach to evaluate
the viability and sustainability of all
our concepts and brands and will cease
operating those that are not contributing
to revenue and profitability. During
the year, the lease for the venues at
Pan Pacific Hotel that were occupied
by ‘Mink’ and ‘Royal Room’ expired.
After careful review, the Group decided
not to continue the collaborative
arrangement with Royal Concepts
Pte Ltd in operating the new concepts
at these venues.

During the year, the Group successfully
placed 425,000,000 new ordinary
shares at the issue price of S$0.0081
per placement share in the share capital
of the Group, raising S$3,385,000.
The share placement strengthens our
The higher expenses coupled with lower cash flow and capital base, increasing
revenue resulted in a loss of S$6.8 million the paid-up capital to S$53.3 million.
for FY2014. If the impairment costs were The proceeds were partially utilised to
factored out, the overall loss would have pay down loan of S$500,000 due to
Qumulus Pte Ltd, as a result of which,
been at a lower S$3.7 million.

LifeBrandz ltd

the Group has no outstanding loan as
at 31 July 2014. In addition, the Group
also utilised part of the proceeds for
working capital in respect of expenses
for rental, operation supplies and
marketing and promotion.
As part of the Group’s efforts to explore
various opportunities for business
expansion, we entered a Memorandum
of Understanding (MOU) with Acteam
International, Middle Investment,
Centurion Private Equity and Massive
Collective Pte Ltd to acquire respective
interests in Acteam International and
Middle Investment and to dispose the
existing businesses of the Group to
Centurion Private Equity Ltd and
Massive Collective Pte Ltd. The objective
of the acquisition and business disposal
was to transform the current core brand
management and lifestyle businesses
of the Group into hotel, resort and
hospitality businesses which in our
opinion have great potential to tap
the burgeoning tourism industry in
the region and enhance shareholder
value in the long term. However, the
respective parties were not able to arrive
at a mutually agreeable structure of the
transaction and the MOU was terminated
as of 14 August 2014.
Going forward, the Group will continue
to explore various viable business
expansion opportunities. In doing so,
we will exercise due diligence within
our governance and risk management
framework to ensure that the interests
of shareholders are given top priority.
In this respect, we would like to reassure
our shareholders that we have in place
strong internal control policies and
practices to ensure that high standards
of corporate governance pervade the
Group. We will continuously review and
improve our policies, processes, controls
and reporting systems to ensure that
we are compliant with all regulatory
requirements.
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The outlook for the entertainment
and lifestyle sector will continue to
be challenging. We are cautious
about the Group’s prospects for the
coming year. We will continue to be
vigilant in managing operating costs,
enhancing productivity and improve the
performance of our outlets. The Group’s
management has the experience and
expertise to meet the challenges ahead.
Barring any unforeseen circumstances,
we are cautiously confident that we can
improve overall performance in FY2015.
In conclusion, I would like to express
my gratitude to the Board for giving me
the opportunity to lead LifeBrandz to
the next phase of its development.
I would like to extend my appreciation
to my predecessor, Mr Bernard Lim,
for his hard work and dedication in
developing the Group into one of the
leaders in entertainment, dining and
night life industry. I appreciate his kind
support in willing to remain on the Board
to provide expert guidance and direction
to the Group.
I would also like to thank all our
customers for their loyalty and support,
our shareholders for their patience and
the management and staff for their
co-operation and hard work in driving
LifeBrandz forward under difficult
circumstances.

Cedric Chong Sien Chern
Chief Executive Officer
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Business Review

the ambience of the lounge. Featuring
a capacity crowd every weekend
and renowned DJs, word is starting
to spread that there is no other spot
to be in town.

As

a global city, Singapore’s
entertainment, music
and lifestyle industry is dynamic and
constantly evolving. At LifeBrandz, we
are constantly reviewing and refreshing
our concepts, striving to improve
the performances of our outlets so
as to have our fingers on the pulse
of consumers and be in tune with
changing preferences and tastes. We
leverage on our strong ability to stay
ahead of changing trends and innovate
with new concepts to cater to our
sophisticated clientele.
In FY2014, we revamped our brand
strategy and outlets so as to better
align our resources to optimise the
Group’s overall performance. We
launched Hopdog, the newest sensation
in town offering a wide variety of
flavoured beers and ciders matched
with flavoured gourmet hot dogs. Our

PLAYHOUSE
iconic and established brands such as
Mulligan’s and Fenix Room continued to
do well and were attracting a wide base
of revellers and diners.
FENIX ROOM
The launch of this unique venue in June
2013 heralds a new era for the industry
by reinventing the “Ultra-lounge”
concept which will take VIP nightlife
to a whole new level. Fenix Room is
set to up the ante in outrageous night
time revelry catered specifically to the
taste buds of Singapore’s elite. Housed
in a 7,800 square feet venue in Clarke
Quay, Fenix Room is reminiscent of
lavish lounges of the Roaring Twenties
with delicate touches of contemporary
designs. The Art Deco inspired lounge
comes complete with grand furnishing,
plush sofas and a bar customised with
brass accents. State-of-the-art lighting
sets the mood and further enhances

Since it’s induction to the nightlife
scene, Playhouse has developed a
fast-growing reputation for being
a prime location to go to for a VIP
experience coupled with consumer
friendly prices. Offering consumers
extreme value for their money, the
nightclub attracts partygoers from
all walks of life who are often
looking for a place to kickstart their
weekend after a long week at work.
AQUANOVA
Conceptualised as a comprehensive
one-stop lifestyle venue, Aquanova
Restaurant Bar is the hot spot for an
unparalleled experience for dining and
live performances.
Aquanova presents an exquisite
menu boasting delectable seafood
and grill dishes with a novel touch
which showcases unique pairings and
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comforting familiar flavours masterfully
reinvented with a twist. Rocking
Aquanova’s unique and interactive
centre stage is ultimate eight piece live
band A-LIST; a stalwart name in the
local live entertainment scene known
for their electrifying performances with
renowned performers like Alia D and
Douglas Oliveiro. The venue has also
hosted many stand-up comedy acts
such as queen of local comedy, Kumar,
who has entertained our patrons
multiple times.
DREAM
Club-goers are treated to a rare
experience at Dream, one of Singapore’s
only large room format dance clubs.
The venue features state-of-the-art light
and sound technology taking cues from
futuristic festivals and clubs around
the world. Commercial favourites
coupled with electronic dance tunes
tear through the 9,000 square feet
club that houses 19 luxe sofas on two
levels (the main room and the balcony),
easily accommodating thousands of
partygoers every week.
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MULLIGAN’S

Hopdog

Mulligan’s is Clarke Quay’s very
first Irish concept bar since 2009.
It provides patrons with an experience
similar to that of a traditional Victorianera pub, adorned with authentic Irish
bric-a-brac, antique Irish posters,
Guinness artworks and photos to
complete the quaint Irish charm.
Mulligan’s screens a variety of live
sports, focusing mainly on soccer,
rugby, F1 Grand Prix and basketball.
The food menu features a wide range
of traditional Irish delicacies and
uncomplicated American fare. Sing
along to rock tunes of young and
old and let the merrymaking begin!

Hopdog is an American-inspired diner
that serves up some of the hottest
gourmet dogs in town. Since it’s
opening earlier this year, it has been
featured on publications such as
The Straits Times, The Business Times
and multiple online food blogs.
Upping the ante, Hopdog also offers
over a hundred different craft beers
(that’s where the Hop in Hopdog
comes from) for hungry customers
to wash down the hotdogs on offer,
which come in multiple unique flavours
from the Mexican-inspired “Ariba”
to the Korean-inspired “Hottodoggu”.
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Board of Directors

CEDRIC CHONG SIEN CHERN
Executive Director

BERNARD LIM MIANG
Non-Executive Director

IRWIN LIM KEE WAY
Independent Director

Mr Cedric Chong was appointed as
our Executive Director of the Group
on 22 May 2013. He was last re-elected
a Director on 26 November 2013. He
was appointed Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO”) of the Group on 1 December
2013. As CEO, he is responsible for
the overall management of the Group,
setting strategic directions while
managing operations and plans for the
Group’s future growth and expansion.

Mr Bernard Lim was appointed as
our Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the
Group on 1 April 2009. He stepped
down as CEO and assumed the
appointment of Non-Executive Director
on 30 November 2013. Mr Lim joined
the company in March 2007 as
Executive Vice President before he was
appointed as CEO of the group.
Mr Lim is currently the Managing
Director for television with MediaCorp.
Prior to joining Lifebrandz, Mr Lim was
a familiar face in the mass media
industry for 15 years. He was Vice
President for MediaCorp Radio
Singapore, managing the radio
stations’ programming and business.
Mr Lim holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree from the National University
of Singapore.

Mr Irwin Lim was appointed as an
Independent Director of the Group
on 21 April 2004. He is Chairman of
the Group’s Audit Committee and a
member of the Group’s Nominating and
Remuneration Committees. He was last
re-elected a Director on 24 November
2011. Mr Lim is currently the Managing
Director of Inflexion Ventures Private
Ltd which is a business advisory and
investment firm. He was previously the
Group CFO of United Test and Assembly
Centre Ltd (UTAC). Prior to that,
Mr Lim has vast experience in the field
of venture capital and private equity
activities in Asia and was previously
responsible for AsiaVest Partners,
TCW/YFY (Taiwan) Ltd’s investments,
primarily in the Southeast Asian region.
Mr Lim, who started his career with
the Economic Development Board of
Singapore, has also been involved in
investment consulting services.

Prior to his appointment, Mr Cedric
Chong, as a Director of Massive
Collective Pte. Ltd., founded and
operated many successful clubs and
bars like FILTER Members VIP CLUB,
MINK CLUB, ROYAL ROOM BAR,
FOODBAR DADA etc. Before that,
Cedric accumulated his experiences
in various entities involving in sales
and marketing in both the service and
consumer sectors.
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THOMAS CARLTON THOMPSON III
Independent Director

WONG KOK HOE
Non-Executive Director

Mr Thomas Carlton Thompson III was
appointed as our Non-Executive Director
on 21 April 2004. He was appointed as
our Independent Director on 12 March
2009. He is a member of the Group’s
Audit Committee, and chairman of the
Group’s Remuneration Committee and
the Nominating Committee. He was
last re-elected a Director on
26 November 2013.

Mr Wong was appointed as our
Non-Executive Director on 28 August
2009. He is a member of the Group’s
Audit, Nominating and Remuneration
Committees. He was last re-elected
a Director on 24 November 2011.

Mr Thompson was previously a director
of ACH Investments Pte. Ltd.,
an investment advisory firm. Prior to
that, Mr Thompson held various senior
positions in leading foreign banks
including a Partner in SBC-Brinson
(now UBS Asset Management),
CEO Asia-Pacific of HSBC Asset
Management, Managing Director of
Wardley Investment Services (Australia)
Limited and Chief Economist of Wardley
Investment Services (Hong Kong).
Mr Thompson is also a past
Chairman of the Hong Kong
Investment Funds Association.

Mr Wong is the Group Chief
Operating Officer of the Centurion
Group. The Group has interests in
fund management, private equity
investments, property development
and investments. Prior to this, he was
a partner in a local advocates and
solicitors firm. He has more than
18 years of experience in legal practice
and his main areas of practice were
corporate law, corporate finance,
mergers and acquisitions and venture
capital. He is currently a director of
Centurion Corporation Limited.
He was also a former director of SBI
Offshore Limited, CFM Holdings Limited
and Hartawan Holdings Limited which
he resigned on 1 December 2012,
31 October 2013 and 12 December
2013 respectively. Mr Wong holds a
Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree from
the National University of Singapore.
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Key Management

CEDRIC CHONG SIEN CHERN
Chief Executive Officer

Joe Chiang Kok Kin
Chief Financial Officer

Mr Cedric Chong was appointed CEO
of the Group on 1 December 2013.
As CEO, Mr Cedric Chong is responsible
for the overall management of the
Group, setting strategic directions
and plans for the Group’s future growth
and expansion. Prior to his appointment,
Mr Cedric Chong, as a Director of
Massive Collective Pte. Ltd., founded
and operated many successful clubs
and bars like FILTER Members VIP CLUB,
MINK CLUB, ROYAL ROOM BAR,
FOODBAR DADA etc. Before that,
Cedric accumulated his experiences in
various entities involving in sales and
marketing in both the service
and consumer sectors

As Chief Financial Officer, Mr Joe Chiang
oversees the financial, accounting,
corporate and business development,
corporate secretarial and operation
management of the Group. He also
assists the CEO in formulating long-term
strategy and direction for the Group
and will set up financial discipline for
growth and expansion. Prior to joining
LifeBrandz, Mr Chiang was the Director
of Corporate Development with
Fish & Co Group of Companies for the
past 10 years. Mr Chiang held various
senior financial and accounting positions
in local and multi-national corporations.
Mr Chiang has a Master in Business
Administration, and a Fellow with the
Association of International Accountants
(UK). He is currently a Full Member of
the Singapore Institute of Directors.
JOSHUA MICHAEL SCHWARTZ
Chief Operating Officer
Mr Joshua M Schwartz was appointed
as Chief Operating Officer of the
Group on 18 June 2014. As COO, he
oversees the operations of the Group’s
outlets, and is a key player in assisting
Management with the operations
management and strategic planning of
the Company. Mr Joshua M Schwartz
brings with him many years of business
experiences in hospitality and had held
senior managerial positions both in
United States and Singapore.
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100%

100%

Balcony Pte. Ltd.

Cannery Leisure Pte. Ltd.

80%

100%

Cannery Holding Pte. Ltd.

Mercier Group Pte. Ltd.

100%

100%

Palms Development Pte. Ltd.

Tribeca Leisure Pte. Ltd.

100%

100%

Brandz+ Pte. Ltd.

The Cannery Pte. Ltd.

100%
Luminox Pte. Ltd.

100%
Orientstar Group Limited

100%
LB Investments Limited

100%
Mulligan’s Pte Ltd

100%

100%

LifeBrandz (Thailand) Co. Ltd.

Mulligan’s Co. Ltd

100%
Lux Leisure Pte Ltd
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Corporate Governance Statement
The Board of Directors of LifeBrandz Limited (the “Company”) is committed to ensure that the highest standards of corporate
governance and transparency are practised throughout the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), as a fundamental part
of discharging its responsibilities to protect and enhance shareholder value and the financial information of the Group. In view of
this, the Board fully supports the principles behind the Code of Corporate Governance 2012 (the “Code”), which forms part of
the Continuing Obligations of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”)’s Listing Manual, by adopting and
adapting the Code throughout the Group.
The SGX-ST’s Listing Manual requires an issuer to describe its corporate governance practices with specific reference to the Code
in its annual report. It must also disclose any deviation from any aspect of the Code together with an appropriate explanation for
such deviation in the annual report.
This statement outlines the policies adopted during the financial year ended 31 July 2014 and practised by the Group, with specific
reference given to the relevant provisions of the Code.

THE CODE
The Code is divided into four main sections:
1.

Board Matters

2.

Remuneration Matters

3.

Accountability and Audit

4.

Shareholder Rights and Responsibilities

1.

BOARD MATTERS
Principle 1:
The Board’s Conduct of its Affairs
Every company should be headed by an effective Board to lead and control the company. The Board is collectively responsible
for the long-term success of the company. The Board works with Management to achieve this objective and the Management
remains accountable to the Board.
The principal functions of the Board are:
(a)

Reviewing and approving corporate strategies, annual budgets and financial plans and monitoring the organisational
performance towards them;

(b)

Reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s internal controls, risk management systems, and the financial
information reporting systems;

(c)

Ensuring the Group’s compliance to laws, regulations, policies, directives, guidelines and internal code of conduct;

(d)

Approving nominations to the Board of Directors by the Nominating Committee (“NC”) and endorsing the appointments
of the Management team and external auditors;

(e)

Reviewing and approving the remuneration packages for the Board and key executives; and

(f)

Ensuring accurate, adequate and timely reporting to, and communication with shareholders.

Matters which are specifically reserved to the full Board for decision include those involving corporate plans and budgets,
material acquisitions and disposal of assets, corporate and financial restructuring, share issuances, dividends, other returns to
shareholders and interested person transactions.
The Board has delegated specific responsibilities to 3 committees (Audit, Nominating, and Remuneration), the details of
which are set out below. These committees function within clearly defined terms of reference and operating procedures,
which are reviewed on a regular basis. These committees have the authority to examine particular issues and report back to
the Board with a fair recommendation. The ultimate responsibility for the final decision on all matters, however, lies with the
Board. The effectiveness of each committee is also constantly reviewed by the Board.
New directors are also informed about matters such as the Code of Dealing in the Company’s shares. To keep pace with
regulatory changes, the Company provides opportunities for on-going education on Board processes and best practices, as
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Corporate Governance Statement
well as updates on changes in legislation and financial reporting standards, regulations and guidelines from the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) that will affect the Company and/or Directors in discharging their duties.
Board members are also encouraged to attend seminars and receive training to improve themselves in the discharge of their
duties as Directors. The Company works closely with professionals to provide its Directors with pertinent information in
relation to changes to relevant laws, regulations and accounting standards.
The Board meets at least four times a year, with additional meetings convened as necessary. Board meetings are held in
Singapore and the Directors attend the meetings regularly. The matrix on the frequency of the meetings and the attendance
of Directors at these meetings is set out on page 28.
Principle 2:
Board’s Composition and Guidance
There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to exercise objective judgement on corporate
affairs independently, in particular, from Management and 10% shareholders. No individual or small group of individuals
should be allowed to dominate the Board’s decision making.
The Board of Directors comprises five Directors, two of whom are independent Directors. All Board members bring about an
independent judgment and diversified knowledge and experiences to bear on the issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standards of conduct. A brief description on the background of each Director is presented on “Board of Directors”
section on page 12.
In line with the 2012 Code, the NC introduced the peer assessment of independence of each director who has served the
Board beyond nine years. The peer assessments considered, amongst others, the contribution by the director, the uniqueness
of his skills and participation at meetings. Having carried out their review for FY 2014 and taking into account the view of
the NC, the Board determined that Mr Irwin Lim Kee Way who was appointed on 21 April 2004, be considered independent
notwithstanding that he has served on the Board beyond nine years. Mr Irwin Lim Kee Way has contributed effectively by
providing impartial and autonomous views, advice and judgement. He has continued to demonstrate strong independence in
character and mind in all matters.
The criterion for independence is determined based on the definition as provided in the Code. The Board considers an
“independent” Director as one who has no relationship with the Company, its related companies or its officers that could
interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the Directors’ independent business judgment with
a view to the best interests of the Group. As independent Directors make up more than one third of the Board, no individual
or group is able to dominate the Board’s decision-making process.
The independence of each Director is reviewed annually by the NC.
The Board examines its size to satisfy that it is an appropriate size for effective decision making, taking into account the
nature and scope of the Company’s operations. The NC is of the view that the current Board size is appropriate.
Principle 3:
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the leadership of the Board and the executives responsible for
managing the company’s business. No one individual represents a considerable concentration of power.
In the year under review, Mr Bernard Lim Miang stepped down as Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the Group on
30 November 2013 and assumed a Non-Executive Director position within the Board. Mr Cedric Chong Sien Chern, an
Executive Director was appointed the position of CEO of the Group on 1 December 2013. There is no appointment of
a Chairman of the Group as in the opinion of the Board, the current group structure and business scope does not warrant
such appointment and that there is a good balance of power and authority to the best interest of the Group.
The CEO is responsible to the Board for all corporate governance procedures to be implemented by the Group and to ensure
conformance by the Management to such practices. There is no concentration of power as the Group is run objectively on
a transparent basis as the Board feels that there is adequate representation of independent and Non-Executive Directors
(more than half) on the Board. All major decisions made by the Board are subject to majority approval of the Board. The
Board believes that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure an appropriate balance of power and authority with in
the spirit of good corporate governance.
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As a general rule, Board papers are sent to the Directors in advance in order for the Directors to be adequately prepared for
the meeting. Management staff who have prepared the papers are invited to present the papers at the meeting.
Principle 4:
Board Membership
There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment and re-appointment of directors to the Board.
Nominating Committee
The NC comprises three members, a majority of whom, including the Chairman, are independent. The members of the NC are:
•

Mr Thomas Carlton Thompson III

Chairman and Independent Director

•

Mr Irwin Lim Kee Way

Independent Director

•

Mr Wong Kok Hoe

Non-Executive Director

The NC has adopted the written terms of reference which describes the responsibilities of NC and the proceedings at
NC meetings.
The NC’s principal responsibilities are as follows:
(a)

To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment of new Executive and Non-Executive Directors, including
making recommendations on the composition of the Board generally and the balance between Executive and
Non-Executive Directors appointed to the Board, as well as ensuring there are procedures in place for the selection and
appointment of Non-Executive Directors;

(b)

To regularly review the Board structure, size and composition and make recommendations to the Board with regards to
any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

(c)

To be responsible for assessing nominees or candidates for appointment or election to the Board, determining whether
or not such nominees have the requisite qualifications and whether or not they are independent;

(d)

To recommend Directors who are retiring by rotation to be put forward for re-election;

(e)

To oversee the management development and succession planning of the Group;

(f)

To decide whether or not a Director is able to and has been adequately carrying out his duties as a Director of the
Company, particularly when he has multiple board representations;

(g)

To be responsible for assessing the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and for assessing the contribution of each
individual Director to the effectiveness of the Board;

In determining the independence of the Directors, the NC has developed a Return on Independence which is required to be
completed by all Directors on an annual basis and submitted to NC for its review.
Nomination and Selection
In the event a new Director had been required, the search would have been through search companies, contacts and
recommendations so that the Company could cast its net as wide as possible for the right candidates. The NC will identify
potential candidates for appointments based on and after taking into consideration the candidates’ qualification, knowledge,
skills and experience, as well as his/her ability to increase the effectiveness of the Board and the Group’s business. The NC will
then recommend their appointments to the Board for consideration.
Election and re-election
New Directors are appointed by way of a Board resolution, upon their nomination from the NC. In accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association, these new Directors who are appointed by the Board are subject to election by shareholders
at the first opportunity after their appointment. The Articles of Association of the Company also require that one-third of
the Board retire from office at each Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). Accordingly, the Directors submit themselves for
re-nomination and re-election at regular intervals of at least once every 3 years.
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Policy on external appointments
The Group recognises that its Executive Directors may be invited to become Non-Executive Directors of other companies and
that the exposure to such non-executive duties can broaden the experience and knowledge of its Executive Directors which
will benefit the Group. Executive Directors are therefore allowed to accept non-executive appointments as long as these
are with non-competing companies, are not likely to lead to conflict of interest and their commitment to the Group is not
compromised. Despite some of the directors having multiple Board representations, the NC is satisfied that these directors are
able to and have adequately carried out their duties as Directors of the Company, after taking into consideration the number
of listed company board representations and other principal commitments. Currently, the Board has not determined the
maximum number of listed board representations which any Director may hold. The NC is of the view that there are currently
no compelling reasons to impose a cap on the number of board representations each director may hold as each director is
able to and have adequately carried out his duties as a director of the Company.
Principle 5:
Board Performance
There should be a formal annual assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and its board committees and the
contribution by each director to the effectiveness of the Board.
The NC assesses the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the Committees of the Board on an annual basis. In this aspect,
both quantitative and qualitative criteria were adopted. The quantitative performance criteria include growth in turnover and
profitability, return on assets and profitability on capital employed. The qualitative measures include the effectiveness of the
Board in its monitoring role and the attainment of the strategic and long-term objectives set by the Board. For this purpose,
the NC has developed a checklist to assist in its assessment of the Board’s effectiveness at least once every year.
Principle 6:
Access to Information
In order to fulfill their responsibilities, Board members should be provided with complete, adequate and timely information
prior to Board meetings and on an on-going basis so as to enable them to make informed decisions to discharge their duties
and responsibilities.
The Board has separate and independent access to the Senior Management and the Company Secretary at all times. Requests
for information from the Board are dealt with promptly by the Management. The Board is informed of all material events and
transactions as and when they occur. The Management provides the Board with monthly and quarterly reports of the Group’s
performance. The Management also consults with Board members regularly whenever necessary and appropriate. The Board
is issued with Board papers timely and prior to Board meetings. Analysts’ reports on the Company are also forwarded to the
Directors on an on-going basis as and when received.
The Company Secretary attends all Board meetings. The Company Secretary administers, attends and prepares minutes of
Board meetings, and assists the Chairman in ensuring that Board procedures are followed and reviewed so that the Board
functions effectively and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association and the relevant rules and regulations
applicable to the Company are complied with.
The Board in fulfilling its responsibilities, can as a group or individually, when deemed fit, direct the Company to appoint
professional adviser to render professional advice. The Board takes independent professional advice as and when necessary
to enable it or the independent Directors to discharge the responsibilities effectively.

2.

REMUNERATION MATTERS
The Company adopted the objective as recommended by the Code to determine the remuneration for a Director so as to
ensure that the Company attracts and retains the Directors needed to run the Group successfully. The component parts of
remuneration are structured so as to link rewards to corporate and individual performance, in the case of Executive Directors.
In the case of Non-Executive Directors, the level of remuneration reflects the level of responsibilities undertaken by the
particular Non-Executive Director concerned.
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Principle 7:
Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies
There should be a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the
remuneration packages of individual Directors. No Director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.
Remuneration Procedure
The Code endorses, as good practice, a formal framework for fixing the remuneration packages of individuals, with a
Remuneration Committee making recommendations to the Board.
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) comprises three members, all non-executive with a majority of whom, including the
Chairman, are independent. The members of the RC are:
•

Mr Thomas Carlton Thompson III Chairman and Independent Director

•

Mr Irwin Lim Kee Way

Independent Director

•

Mr Wong Kok Hoe

Non-Executive Director

The RC has adopted the written terms of reference which describes the responsibilities of RC and the proceedings at
RC meetings.
The RC’s principal responsibilities are as follows:
(a)

To approve the structure of the compensation programme for Directors and Senior Management to ensure that the
programme is competitive and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Senior Management of the required quality to
run the Company successfully.

(b)

To review and recommend the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the CEO and key executives of the
Company annually.

(c)

To oversee and review the administration of the LifeBrandz Employees Share Option (“ESOS”) as defined in the option
scheme. Any matter pertaining to the ESOS and any dispute and uncertainty as to the interpretation of the ESOS,
any rule, regulation or procedure thereunder or any rights under the ESOS shall be determined by the RC.

(d)

To review the appropriateness of compensation for Non-Executive Directors including but not limited to Directors’ fees,
allowances and share options.

(e)

To review and recommend to the Board any long term incentive schemes which may be set up from time to time and
to do all acts necessary in connection therewith.

(f)

To carry out its duties in the manner that it deems expedient, subject always to any regulations or restrictions that may
be imposed upon the RC by the Board from time to time.

Principle 8:
Level and Mix of Remuneration
The level and structure of remuneration should be aligned with the long-term interest and risk policies of the company, and
should be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate (a) the Directors to provide good stewardship of the company, and
(b) key management personnel to successfully manage the company. However, companies should avoid paying more than is
necessary for this purpose.
The Company sets remuneration packages to ensure that it is competitive and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
directors and key management personnel of the required experience and expertise to run the Company successfully.
In setting remuneration packages for the key management personnel, the RC takes into consideration the pay and employment
conditions with the industry and in comparable companies.
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Principle 9:
Disclosure on Remuneration
Each Company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policy, level and mix of remuneration, and the procedure
for setting remuneration, in the Company’s annual report. It should provide disclosure in relation to its remuneration
policies to enable investors to understand the link between remuneration paid to directors and key management personnel,
and performance.
The RC recommends to the Board the framework of executive remuneration and the remuneration package for each
Executive Director. In its deliberations, the RC will take into consideration industry practices and norms in compensation
in addition to the Company’s relative performance in the industry and the performance of the individual Directors.
The remuneration packages recommended by the RC are ultimately approved by the Board. No Director is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
Remuneration package
The Company adopts a remuneration policy for staff comprising a fixed and variable component. The fixed component
is in the form of a base salary. The variable component is in the form of a variable bonus which is linked to the Group’s
performance as well as the individual’s performance which is assessed based on their respective key performance indicators
allocated to them. With effect from the new financial year, the variable component will also comprise the options granted to
staff under ESOS. This seeks to align the interests of staff with that of the shareholders. Staff appraisals are conducted once
every year.
The remuneration package of Directors and key management personnel includes the following:
(a)

Basic salary
The basic salary (inclusive of statutory employer’s contributions to Central Provident Fund) for each Executive Director
is recommended by the RC, taking into account the performance of the individual, the inflationary rate and the
information from independent sources on the rates of salary for similar positions in a selected group of comparable
organizations.

(b)

Fees
Directors’ fees are set in accordance with a remuneration framework comprising basic fees and takes into account
factors such as effort and time spent, and responsibilities of these Directors. Executive Directors do not receive
Directors’ fees. The payment of fees to Non-Executive Directors is subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company.

(c)

Bonus scheme
The Group operates a bonus scheme for all employees. The criterion for the scheme is the level of profit achieved
against targets together with an assessment of corporate and individual’s performance.

(d)

Share options
The Group operates a share option scheme for all employees, including Executive Directors. The Company has not
granted any options to the employees under the ESOS. With effect from the new financial year, options granted under
the ESOS will form part of the variable component of the employees’ remuneration.

Directors’ Remuneration
A breakdown showing the level and mix of each individual Director’s remuneration in bands payable for FY2014 is as follows:
2014

2013

$250,000 to below $500,000

–

1

Below $250,000

5

5

Total

5

6
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Name
Bernard Lim Miang (1)

Remuneration
Band
S$

Salary
%

Bonus
%

*Directors’
Fees
%

Total
%

Below $250,000

100

–

–

100

Below $250,000

100

–

–

100

Thomas Carlton Thompson III

Below $250,000

–

–

100

100

Irwin Lim Kee Way

Below $250,000

–

–

100

100

Wong Kok Hoe

Below $250,000

–

–

100

100

Cedric Chong Sien Chern

(2)

* The remuneration in the form of Directors’ fee is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
(1)

Mr Bernard Lim Miang stepped down as Chief Executive Officer and assumed a Non-Executive Director appointment on 30 November 2013.

(2)

Mr Cedric Chong Sien Chern, an Executive Director was appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 1 December 2013

For competitive reasons, the Company discloses each individual Director’s remuneration by way of respective bands of
remuneration of each Director.
Remuneration of Key Employees
The table below shows the range of gross remuneration received by the Group’s key executives (excluding Executive Directors)
in the Company.
No. of Executives in Remuneration Bands
Below $250,000
-

Joe Chiang Kok Kin		
Simon Tang Kok Onn		
Joshua Michael Schwartz		

2014

2013

3

2

Chief Financial Officer
Director of Operations (resigned on 31 December 2013)
Chief Operating Officer (appointed on 18 June 2014)

In view of the confidentiality of remuneration matters, the Board is of the opinion that it is in the best interests of the Group
not to disclose the exact remuneration of key executives in the annual report.
The Company does not have any employee who is an immediate family member of a Director or the CEO whose remuneration
in FY2014 exceeded $50,000.

3.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Principle 10:
Accountability
The Board should present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.
For all announcements (including financial performance reporting) made to the public via SGXNET and the annual report to
shareholders, as required by the SGX-ST, the Board has a responsibility to present a fair assessment of the Group’s position
including the prospects of the Group.
To enable effective monitoring and decision-making by the Board, Management provides the Board with a continual flow
of relevant information on a timely basis as well as quarterly management accounts of the Group. Particularly, prior to the
release of quarterly and full year results to the public, Management will present the Group’s financial performance together
with explanatory details of its operations to the Audit Committee, which will review and recommend the same to the Board
for approval and authorisation for the release of the results.
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Principle 11:
Risk Management and Internal Controls
The Board is responsible for the governance of risk. The Board should ensure that Management maintains a sound system of
risk management and internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ interests and the company’s assets, and should determine
the nature and extent of the significant risk which the Board is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives.
The Group has established a risk identification and management framework. With the aforesaid framework, the Group
identifies keys risks and undertakes appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks. Action plans to manage the
risks are continually being monitored and refined by Management and the Board. The Group will reviews regularly all
significant control policies and procedures, and highlight all significant matters to the AC and the Board.
The internal controls structure of the Group has been designed and put in place by management of the Group’s business
units to provide reasonable assurance against material financial misstatements or loss, for the safeguarding of assets, for the
maintenance of proper accounting records, for the provision of financial and other information with integrity, reliability and
relevance, and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. However, no internal controls system can provide absolute
assurance in view of inherent limitations of any internal controls system against the occurrence of human and system errors,
poor judgment in decision-making, losses, fraud or other irregularities.
The Internal Auditors carry out internal audit on the system of internal controls at least annually and reports the findings to
the AC. The Group’s External Auditors, Ernst & Young LLP have also carried out, in the course of their statutory audit, a review
of the group’s material internal controls. Material non-compliance and internal control weaknesses and recommendations
for improvements noted during their audit were reported to the AC. The Board reviewed the adequacy of the Group’s key
internal controls with the assistance of the internal and external auditors and Management, who provide regular reports
during the year to the AC in addition to the briefings and updates provided in the AC Meetings.
In the Group’s impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, the directors are of the opinion that the controls
to evaluate assumptions for impairment analysis are not sufficiently robust and may not have considered varying scenarios
that may arise in the forecasted periods. Further sensitivity analysis were performed for the impairment analysis of property,
plant and equipment in FY 2014 and additional impairment was recorded subsequent to discussions at the Board meeting.
The adjustments for impairment had been included in the financial results for the year ended 31 July 2014.
In the Group’s impairment assessment of intangible assets, the controls to evaluate assumptions for impairment analysis are
not sufficiently robust and had not considered events that occurred subsequent to year-end. As a result, the Group recorded
adjustments to fully impair the intangible assets subsequent to discussions at the Board meeting.
Management will continue to review and strengthen the Group’s control environment, and further refine its internal policies
and procedures especially in relation to impairment assessment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets on
a timely basis.
The Board has also received assurance from the Group’s CEO and the Group’s Chief Financial Officer that financial records
have been properly maintained and the financial statements provide a true and fair view of the Company’s operations and
finances, and the Company risk management and internal control systems in place are effective.
Based on the internal control established and maintained by the Group, work performed by the internal auditors during the
financial year, as well as the statutory audit by the external auditors and review performed by management, various Board
committees and the Board, the Board, with the concurrence of the AC, is of the opinion that the Group’s system of risk
management and internal controls, addressing financial, operational, compliance and information technology controls risks,
were adequate and effective for the financial year ended 31 July 2014.
Principle 12:
Audit Committee
The Board should establish an Audit Committee with written terms of reference which clearly set out its authority and duties.
The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in the execution of its corporate governance responsibilities within
the established Board’s references and requirements. The financial statements, accounting policies and system of internal
accounting controls are responsibilities that fall under the ambit of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has its set
of written terms of reference defining its scope of authority and further details of its major functions are set out below and
also in the Directors’ Report.
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The Audit Committee (“AC”) comprises three members, two of whom are independent and one non-executive. At the date
of this report, the Audit Committee comprises the following members:
•

Mr Irwin Lim Kee Way

Chairman and Independent Director

•

Mr Thomas Carlton Thompson III

Independent Director

•

Mr Wong Kok Hoe

Non-Executive Director

The AC is chaired by Mr Irwin Lim Kee Way, who was previously the Group Chief Financial Officer of United Test and Assembly
Centre Ltd. Mr Irwin Lim holds a Masters of Science in Management from Imperial College, University of London, and
a Bachelor of Science in Industrial Engineering from Columbia University. The other members of the AC have many years of
experience in business management, corporate finance, fund management and investment banking. The Board and NC are
of the view that the members of the AC have the necessary expertise and experience to discharge their functions.
In performing its functions, the AC confirms that it has explicit authority to investigate any matter within its terms of
reference, full access to and co-operation from the Management, and has been given full discretion to invite any Director
or executive officer to attend its meetings, as well as reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its functions properly.
The main functions of the AC are as follows:
(a)

Review with the external auditors of the Company, their audit plan, evaluation of the internal accounting controls,
audit reports and any matters which the external auditors wish to discuss (in the absence of the Management).

(b)

Ensure co-operation is given by the Company’s Management to the internal and external auditors.

(c)

Review the announcement of the quarterly and year-end results to SGX-ST.

(d)

Review the annual financial statements and the auditor’s report on the Company’s annual financial statements before
they are presented to the Board, focusing on:
•

going concern assumption;

•

compliance with accounting standards and regulatory requirements;

•

any changes in accounting policies and practices;

•

significant issues arising from the audit; and

•

major judgmental areas;

(e)

Review with the Management and the external auditors the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal
controls, business and service systems and practices.

(f)

Monitor and review related and interested party transactions and conflict of interest situation that may arise within the
Group. The AC is also required to ensure that the Directors report such transactions annually to shareholders in the
annual report.

(g)

Review the scope and result of the internal audit procedures.

(h)

Make recommendation on the appointment and re-appointment of the external and internal auditors to the Board.

(i)

Review significant risks or exposures that exist and assess the steps taken by the Management to minimise such risks
to the Company, and

(j)

Any other functions which may be agreed by the AC and the Board.

The AC has the power to conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within the AC’s scope of responsibilities.
The AC is authorized to obtain independent professional advice if it deems necessary in the discharge of its responsibilities.
Such expenses are to be borne by the Company.
The Company has put in place a whistle-blowing policy to provide a channel to employees to report in good faith and in confidence,
without fear of reprisals, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting or other matters. The objective for such
an arrangement is to ensure independent investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow-up action.
The AC has full access to and co-operation of the Company’s Management and has full discretion to invite any Director or
executive officer to attend the meetings, and has been given reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its functions.
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The AC, having reviewed the range and value of non-audit services performed by the external auditors, Messrs Ernst &
Young LLP,is satisfied that the nature and extent of such services will not prejudice the independence and objectivity of the
external auditors. The AC has also reviewed and confirmed that Messrs Ernst & Young LLP is a suitable audit firm to meet the
Company’s audit obligations, having regards to the adequacy of resources and experience of the firm and the assigned audit
engagement partner, other audit engagements, size and nature of the Group, number and experience of supervisory and
professional staff assigned to the audit. The aggregate amount of fees paid to the external auditors of the Company, broken
down into audit and non-audit services during FY2014 are disclosed in the note 9 to the financial statements.
The AC is satisfied that Rules 712 and 715 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST are complied with and has recommended to
the Board that, Messrs Ernst & Young LLP be nominated for re-appointment as external auditors at the forthcoming AGM.
Principle 13:
Internal Audit
The Company should establish an effective internal audit function that is adequately resourced and independent of the
activities it audits.
For the financial year ended 31 July 2014, the Company outsourced its internal audit function to Mazars LLP, an external
professional firm, who reports directly to the Chairman of AC and administratively to the Management. Mazars LLP is the
continuation and integration of TransFingo Pte Ltd which has merged its entire Business Process Risk Consultancy with
Mazars LLP effective 1st January 2014. Mazars LLP is an international, integrated and independent organization specialising
in audit, accountancy, tax, legal and advisory services.
The internal auditor is guided by the Standards for Professional Practice of Internal Auditing set by the Institute of
Internal Auditors. The objective of the internal audit function is to determine whether the Group’s risk management,
control and governance processes, as designed by the Company, is adequate and functioning in the required manner.
The internal auditors have identified the Group’s main business processes and developed an audit plan that covers the main
business process.
To achieve its objectives, the internal auditor has unrestricted access to all record, properties and personnel of the Group.
The AC will review the adequacy of the function of the internal audit annually. Based on the review of the internal audit,
the AC believes that the internal auditors are independent and have the appropriate standing and adequate resources to
perform its function effectively and objectively.

4.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Principle 14:
Companies should treat all shareholders fairly and equitably, and should recognise, protect and facilitate the exercise of
shareholders’ rights, and continually review and update such governance arrangements.
The Board treats all shareholders fairly and equitably and facilitate the exercise of shareholders’ rights.
The Board is accountable to the shareholders and recognise its obligation to provide timely and fair disclosure of material
information to shareholders, investors and public. The Company ensured that the Shareholders have the opportunity to
participate effectively in and vote at the general meeting and the information on the rules, including voting procedures that
govern general meeting have been provided to the shareholders.
Principle 15:
Companies should actively engage their shareholders and put in place an investor relations policy to promote regular, effective
and fair communication with shareholders.
The Company does not practise selective disclosure. In line with continuous obligations of the Company pursuant to the
SGX-ST’s Listing Rules, the Board’s policy is that all shareholders should be equally informed of all major developments
impacting the Group.
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Information is disseminated to shareholders on a timely basis through:
•

SGXNET systems and news release

•

Annual reports prepared and issued to all shareholders

•

The Company’s website at www.lifebrandz.com and investor relations site, Shareinvestor, at which shareholders can
access information on the Group

Results and annual reports are announced or issued within the mandatory period. The Group has an investor relation team
which communicates with its investors on a regular basis and attends to their queries. All shareholders of the Company will
receive a copy of the annual report and the notice of the Annual General Meeting. The notice is also advertised in newspaper
and made available at the SGX-ST’s and the Company’s websites.
Principle 16:
Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at general meetings of shareholders, and allow
shareholders the opportunity to communicate their views on various matters affecting the Company.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM to ensure a high level of accountability and to stay informed of the
Company’s strategy and goal. The Company encourages active shareholders’ participation. During the AGM, shareholders
may raise questions or share their views regarding the proposed resolutions and also the Company’s businesses and affairs.
The respective Chairman of the AC, NC, RC and senior management will attend to address questions relating to the progress
and performance of the Group. The independent auditor would also be present to assist the Directors in addressing any
relevant queries by shareholders.
Shareholders can vote in person or appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote on behalf. Voting in absentia
and electronic mail may only be possible following careful study to ensure the integrity of the information and
authentication of the identity of members through the web is not compromised and is also subject to legislative amendment
to recognise electronic voting.
The Company will practise having separate resolutions at general meetings on each substantially separate issue. “Bundling”
of resolutions are kept to a minimum and are done only where the resolutions are interdependent so as to form one
significant proposal and only where there are reasons and material implications involved.
The Company is evaluating the technicality and feasibility on the direction of voting by poll for all resolutions in the general
meetings. The Company has not adopted voting by poll for all resolutions this year. The Company will make arrangement to
meet the requirement of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST in relation to poll voting from 1 August 2015.
The Company will make available minutes of general meetings to shareholders upon their request.
Dealing in Securities
The Company has complied with Rule 1207(19) of the Listing Manual. The Company has in place a policy prohibiting share
dealings by the Company, Directors and employees of the Company for the period of two weeks before the announcement
of the Company’s financial statements for each of the first three quarters of its financial year, or one month prior to
the announcement of the Company’s full year financial statements, and ending on the date of the announcement of the
relevant results.
In addition, the Company, Directors and key executives are expected to observe insider trading laws at all times even when
dealing in securities within the permitted trading period. They are also discouraged from dealing in the Company’s shares on
short-term consideration.
Material Contracts
There was no material contracts entered into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries involving the interest of the CEO,
any Director, or controlling shareholder for the financial year ended 31 July 2014.
Interested Person Transactions (“IPTs”)
The Company has established procedures to ensure that all transactions with interested persons are reported in a timely
manner to the AC and those transactions are conducted on an arm’s length basis and are not prejudicial to the interests of
the shareholders.
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There have been no IPTs equal to or exceeding $100,000 in value for the financial year ended 31 July 2014.
The Company does not have a shareholders’ mandate for interested person transactions.

Name of
Interested person

Aggregate value of all interested person
transactions during the financial year under
review (excluding transactions less than
$100,000 and transactions conducted under
shareholders’ mandate pursuant to Rule 920)

Aggregate value of all interested person
transactions conducted under shareholders’
mandate
pursuant
to
Rule
920
(excluding transactions less than $100,000)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Use of Placement Proceeds
The Company announced on 27 March 2014 in relation to the completion of the placement of 425,000,000 new ordinary
shares at the issue price of S$0.0081 per placement share in the share capital of the Company, and on 28 April 2014,
18 July 2014 and 10 October 2014 further announced the update on the usage of the net placement proceeds of S$3,385,500
as follows:
Balance of net proceeds
as at the date of
the announcement
$’000

Intended use of
net proceeds

Net Proceeds from
placement of shares
S$’000

Cumulative Amount
utilised as at the date
of announcement
$’000

Loan Repayment

500

(500)

Working Capital

2,885

(2,691)*

194

3,385

(3,191)

194

Total
			
Note: *

–

The breakdown of the working capital utilised was as follows:

S$’000

Rental of premises
Operation supplies
Marketing and Promotion
Total

400
1,881
410
2,691

Summary of Committee Meetings
The number of Board and Board Committee meetings held during the financial year ended 31 July 2014 and the attendance
of each Director where relevant is as follows:

No. of meetings held

Board

Audit
Committee

Nominating
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

4

4

1

1

No. of meetings attended by respective Directors:
Bernard Lim Miang (1)

3

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

Cedric Chong Sien Chern (2)

3

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

Thomas Carlton Thompson III

4

4

1

1

Irwin Lim Kee Way

4

4

1

1

Wong Kok Hoe

4

4

1

1

(1)

Mr Bernard Lim Miang stepped down as Chief Executive Officer and assumed the appointment of Non-Executive Director on
30 November 2013.

(2)

Mr Cedric Chong Sien Chern, an Executive Director was appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 1 December 2013.
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Directors’ Report
The directors present their report to the members together with the audited consolidated financial statements of LifeBrandz Ltd
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and the statement of financial position and statement of changes
in equity of the Company for the financial year ended 31 July 2014.

Directors
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are:
Chong Sien Chern Cedric			(Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)
Lim Miang Bernard			(Non-Executive Director)
Lim Kee Way Irwin			(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Thomas Carlton Thompson, III		(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Wong Kok Hoe				(Non-Executive Director)

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures
Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose objects are,
or one of whose object is, to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures
The following directors, who held office at the end of the financial year, had, according to the register of directors’ shareholdings
required to be kept under section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50, an interest in shares of the Company and related
corporations (other than wholly-owned subsidiaries), as stated below:

Direct interest

Deemed interest

At the
beginning of
financial year

At the
end of
financial year

1,907,500
−
−

1,907,500

−

−

–
–

25,065,000
300,000,000

12,466,000
300,000,000

At the
beginning of
financial year

At the
end of
financial year

Name of director
Ordinary shares of the Company
Lim Miang Bernard
Thomas Carlton Thompson, III
Chong Sien Chern Cedric

There was no change in any of the above-mentioned interests in the Company between the end of the financial year and
21 August 2014.
Except as disclosed in this report, no other director who held office at the end of the financial year had interests in shares or
debentures of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the beginning or at the end of the financial year.

Directors’ contractual benefits
Except as disclosed in the financial statements, since the end of the previous financial year, no director of the Company has received
or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director, or
with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest.
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Directors’ Report
Share options
There were no options granted during the financial year to subscribe for unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiaries.
No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued shares of the Company
or its subsidiaries.
There were no unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiaries under option at the end of the financial year.

Audit Committee
The audit committee (AC) carried out its functions in accordance with section 201B(5) of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50,
including the following:
•

Reviewed the audit plans of the internal and external auditors of the Group and the Company, and reviewed the internal
auditor’s evaluation of the adequacy of the Company’s system of internal accounting controls and the assistance given by the
Group and the Company’s management to the external and internal auditors

•

Reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements and the auditor’s report on the annual financial statements of the
Group and the Company before their submission to the board of directors

•

Reviewed effectiveness of the Group and the Company’s material internal controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management via reviews carried out by the internal auditor

•

Met with the external auditor, other committees, and management in separate executive sessions to discuss any matters that
these groups believe should be discussed privately with the AC

•

Reviewed legal and regulatory matters that may have a material impact on the financial statements, related compliance
policies and programmes and any reports received from regulators

•

Reviewed the cost effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the external auditor

•

Reviewed the nature and extent of non-audit services provided by the external auditor

•

Recommended to the board of directors the external auditor to be nominated, approved the compensation of the external
auditor, and reviewed the scope and results of the audit

•

Reported actions and minutes of the AC to the board of directors with such recommendations as the AC considered
appropriate

•

Reviewed interested person transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited’s Listing Manual

The AC, having reviewed all non-audit services provided by the external auditor to the Group, is satisfied that the nature and extent
of such services would not affect the independence of the external auditors. The AC has also conducted a review of interested
person transactions.
The AC convened four meetings during the year with full attendance from all members. The AC has also met with internal and
external auditors, without the presence of the Company’s management, at least once a year.
Further details regarding the AC are disclosed in the Report on Corporate Governance.
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Auditor
Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept reappointment as auditor.

On behalf of the board of directors:

Chong Sien Chern Cedric
Director

Lim Miang Bernard
Director

Singapore
30 October 2014
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Statement by Directors
We, Chong Sien Chern Cedric and Lim Miang Bernard, being two of the directors of LifeBrandz Ltd, do hereby state that, in the
opinion of the directors,
(i)

the accompanying statements of financial position, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, statements of changes
in equity, and consolidated statement of cash flows together with notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 July 2014 and the results of the business, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Group and the changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on that date, and

(ii)

at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they fall due as the directors have assessed that the Group and the Company are able to generate sufficient cash flows
from their operations.

On behalf of the board of directors:

Chong Sien Chern Cedric
Director

Lim Miang Bernard
Director

Singapore
30 October 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
For the financial year ended 31 July 2014
To the Members of LifeBrandz Ltd

Report on the financial statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of LifeBrandz Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 70, which comprise the statements of financial position of the Group and
the Company as at 31 July 2014, the statements of changes in equity of the Group and the Company and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the provisions of
the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining
a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair profit and loss accounts and balance sheet and to maintain accountability of assets.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and statement of changes
in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 July 2014 and the results,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and the changes in equity of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of matter
We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements. The Group and the Company incurred net losses of $6,772,000 and
$6,531,000 respectively during the financial year ended 31 July 2014 and as at that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by $845,000. The Group also incurred an operating cash outflow of $2,493,000 for the year. This indicates the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group and Company’s ability to continue as going concern.
As disclosed more fully in Note 2, the directors have prepared these financial statements on a going concern basis as the Directors are
of the view that the Group and Company will be able to continue to generate net cash inflows from operating activities for a period
of 12 months from the date these financial statements were approved to enable the Group and Company to meet their financial
obligations as and when they fall due.
If the Group and the Company are unable to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, the Group and the Company
may be unable to discharge their liabilities in the normal course of business and adjustments may have to be made to reflect the
situation that assets may need to be realised other than in the normal course of business and at amounts which could differ significantly
from the amounts at which they are currently recorded in the statements of financial position. In addition, the Group and the Company
may have to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities. No such adjustments have been made to these
financial statements. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiaries incorporated
in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
Ernst & Young LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore
30 October 2014
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 July 2014

											
Group
										
Note
2014
2013
											
$’000
$’000
												 (Restated)
Revenue									
5
21,543
Interest income from fixed deposits					
13
Other operating income					
6
474
											
22,030
Expenses					
Inventories and consumables used				
20
(5,810)
Amortisation and depreciation					
(2,400)
Employee benefits					
7
(7,252)
Advertising, media and entertainment					
(3,142)
Rental on operating leases						
(5,097)
Transportation								
(37)
Finance costs							
8
(1)
Licences and permits						
(74)
Legal and professional fees					
9
(276)
Contract services							
(344)
Other operating expenses					
10
(1,201)
Impairment losses					
11
(3,143)
Changes in inventories of finished goods					
(22)
(Loss)/profit before tax						
(6,769)
Income tax expense					
12
(3)
											
(6,772)
					
Attributable to: 				
Owners of the Company						
(5,751)
Non-controlling interest						
(1,021)
											
(6,772)
Other comprehensive income:
				
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss 				
Foreign currency translation						
6
Other comprehensive income for the year 					
6
					
Total comprehensive income for the year 				
(6,766)
					
Attributable to: 				
Owners of the Company						
(5,745)
Non-controlling interest						
(1,021)
											
(6,766)
					
(Loss)/earnings per share					
Basic and diluted (in cents)					
14
(0.25)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

22,863
14
1,546
24,423
(4,731)
(1,230)
(8,138)
(3,064)
(5,100)
(26)
(1)
(68)
(369)
(393)
(1,144)
–
56
215
(13)
202

375
(173)
202

(36)
(36)
166

339
(173)
166

0.02
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Statements of Financial Position
As at 31 July 2014

										Group
								
Note
2014
2013
									
$’000
$’000

Company
2014
2013
$’000
$’000

Non-current assets								
Property, plant and equipment		
15
2,028
4,680
–
–
Fixed deposit pledged			
16
1,980
1,980
1,980
1,980
Other receivables				
17
91
–
621
3,478
Investment in subsidiaries			
18
–
–
321
321
Intangible assets				
19
–
2,230
–
–
									
4,099
8,890
2,922
5,779
									
Current assets								
Trade and other receivables			
17
917
1,376
3,439
5,037
Inventories						
20
315
337
–
–
Prepayments						
123
313
30
24
Cash and cash equivalents			
21
1,132
1,227
53
234
									
2,487
3,253
3,522
5,295
									
Current liabilities
						
Trade and other payables			
22
3,164
4,870
3,415
4,899
Deferred revenue					
168
136
–
–
Finance lease					
23
–
2
–
–
Loans and borrowings			
24
–
500
–
–
									
3,332
5,508
3,415
4,899
									
									
Net current (liabilities)/assets			 (845)
(2,255)
107
396

Non-current liabilities								
Provision for reinstatement costs		
25
1,134
1,134
–
–
									
1,134
1,134
–
–
Net assets 						
2,120
5,501
3,029
6,175
									
									
Equity attributable to owners of the Company						
		
Share capital					
26
53,336
49,951
53,336
49,951
Foreign currency translation reserve			
(27)
(33)
–
–
Accumulated losses				 (48,820)
(43,069)
(50,307)
(43,776)
									
4,489
6,849
3,029
6,175
Non-controlling interest				
(2,369)
(1,348)
–
–
Total equity			
			 2,120
5,501
3,029
6,175

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 31 July 2014

							
Attributable to owners of the Company
									
Foreign		
								
Share
currency		
Non								
capital
translation Accumulated
controlling
Group							
(Note 26)
reserve (a)
losses
interest
								
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
2014					
At 1 August 2013			49,951
(33)
Issuance of shares			
3,442
–
Share issuance expense			
(57)
–
Total contributions by owners
3,385
–
Loss for the year				
–
–
Other comprehensive income for the year		
–
6
Total comprehensive income for the year		
–
6
At 31 July 2014 			53,336
(27)
										
2013					
At 1 August 2012			47,076
3
Issuance of shares			
2,910
–
Share issuance expense			
(35)
–
Total contributions by owners
2,875
–
Profit/(loss) for the year			
–
–
Other comprehensive income for the year		
–
(36)
Total comprehensive income for the year		 –
(36)
At 31 July 2013				49,951
(33)

Total
$’000

(43,069)
–
–
–
(5,751)
–
(5,751)
(48,820)

(1,348)
–
–
–
(1,021)
–
(1,021)
(2,369)

5,501
3,442
(57)
3,385
(6,772)
6
(6,766)
2,120

(43,444)
–
–
–
375
–
375
(43,069)

(1,175)
–
–
–
(173)
–
(173)
(1,348)

2,460
2,910
(35)
2,875
202
(36)
166
5,501

(a) The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations
whose functional currencies are different from that of the Group’s presentation currency.

										
										
Company								
										

Share		
capital Accumulated
(Note 26)
losses
$’000
$’000

2014			
At 1 August 2013					
49,951
Issuance of shares					
3,442
Share issuance expense					
(57)
Total contributions by owners
			 3,385
Loss for the year						
–
Other comprehensive income for the year				
–
Total comprehensive income for the year				
–
At 31 July 2014						
53,336
			
2013		
At 1 August 2012					
47,076
Issuance of shares					
2,910
Share issuance expense					
(35)
Total contributions by owners				 2,875
Profit for the year						
–
Other comprehensive income for the year				
–
Total comprehensive income for the year				
–
At 31 July 2013 					
49,951

Total
$’000

(43,776)
–
–
–
(6,531)
–
(6,531)
(50,307)

6,175
3,442
(57)
3,385
(6,531)
–
(6,531)
3,029

(45,028)
–
–
–
1,252
–
1,252
(43,776)

2,048
2,910
(35)
2,875
1,252
–
1,252
6,175

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 31 July 2014

											
											

2014
$’000

Operating activities			
(Loss)/profit before tax						
(6,769)
Adjustments for:			
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment				
1,330
Amortisation of intangible assets					
1,070
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment				
1,778
Impairment loss on intangible assets					
1,160
Impairment loss on trade receivables					
205
Bad debts written off						
–
	Property, plant and equipment written off					
28
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment				
–
Interest income						
(13)
Finance costs							
1
Exchange realignment						
6
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital				
(1,204)
			
Changes in working capital			
Decrease/(increase) in inventories					
22
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables				
163
Decrease in prepayments						
190
Decrease in trade and other payables					
(1,706)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue					
32
Cash flows (used in)/from operations					
(2,503)
Interest received							
13
Income tax paid							
(3)
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities				 (2,493)
			
Investing activities			
Proceeds from acquisition of business concept (Note 19)				
–
Purchase of property, plant and equipment					
(484)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment				
–
Net cash flows used in investing activities					
(484)
			
Financing activities			
Repayment of obligations under finance lease					
(3)
(Repayment of)/proceeds from short-term loan					
(500)
Proceeds from issuance of shares					
3,442
Share issuance expense						
(57)
Net cash flows from financing activities					
2,882
			
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents					
(95)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year				
1,227
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year (Note 21)			 1,132

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

2013
$’000

215
962
268
–
–
–
3
–
(20)
(14)
1
(36)
1,379

(55)
(1,008)
82
(99)
(127)
172
14
(16)
170

323
(1,527)
25
(1,179)

(6)
500
–
–
494
(515)
1,742
1,227
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 July 2014

1.

Corporate information
LifeBrandz Ltd (the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Singapore and is listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (SGX-ST).
The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is located at Block 3C Clarke Quay, River Valley Road
#02-02, Singapore 179022.
The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal activities of the Group are those of the
lifestyle and entertainment businesses as disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements. There have been no significant
changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

2.

Fundamental accounting concept
During the year ended 31 July 2014, the Group and the Company incurred net losses of $6,772,000 (2013: net profit of
$202,000) and $6,531,000 (2013: net profit of $1,252,000) respectively. As at that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by $845,000 (2013: $2,255,000). The Group had also incurred an operating cash outflow of
$2,493,000 for the year. This indicates the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as going concern.
In the opinion of the directors, the Group and the Company are able to continue as going concern as the Directors are of
the view that the Group and Company will be able to continue to generate net cash inflows from operating activities for a
period of 12 months from the date these financial statements were approved to enable the Group and Company to meet
their financial obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the directors of the Group and the Company are of the view
that the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate for the preparation of these financial statements.
If the Group and the Company are unable to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, the Group and
the Company may be unable to discharge their liabilities in the normal course of business and adjustments may have to be
made to reflect the situation that assets may need to be realised other than in the normal course of business and at amounts
which could differ significantly from the amounts at which they are currently recorded in the statements of financial position.
In addition, the Group and the Company may have to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as currents assets and
liabilities. No such adjustments have been made to these financial statements.

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies

3.1

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and statement of changes in
equity of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.
The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars ($ or SGD) and all values in the tables are rounded to the nearest
thousand ($’000) as indicated.

3.2

Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except that in the current financial
year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised standards which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 August 2013.
The adoption of these standards did not have any effect on the financial performance or position of the Group and
the Company.
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31 July 2014

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.3

Standards issued but not yet effective
The Group has not adopted the following standards that have been issued but not yet effective:
Description
		
Revised FRS 27 Separate Financial Statements
Revised FRS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements
FRS 111 Joint Arrangements
FRS 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
Amendments to FRS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to FRS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Assets
Amendments to FRS 39 Novation of Derivative and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
INT FRS 121 Levies
Amendments to FRS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
Improvements to FRSs (January 2014)
– Amendment to FRS 102 Share-based Payment
– Amendments to FRS 103 Business Combinations
– Amendments to FRS 108 Operating Segments
– Amendment to FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
– Amendment to FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures
– Amendment to FRS 38 Intangible Assets
Improvements to FRSs (February 2014)
– Amendment to FRS 103 Business Combinations
– Amendment to FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement
– Amendment to FRS 40 Investment Property
FRS 114 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 July 2014
1 January 2016

The directors expect that the adoption of the standards above will have no material impact on the financial statements of the
Group and the Company in the period of initial application.
3.4

Basis of consolidation and business combinations
(a)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at the
end of the reporting period. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are
applied to like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
and dividends are eliminated in full.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 July 2014

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.4

Basis of consolidation and business combinations (cont’d)
(a)

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
–		 derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date
when controls is lost;
–		 derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;
–		 derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
–		 recognises the fair value of the consideration received;
–		 recognises the fair value of any investment retained;
–		 recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;
–		 reclassifies the Group’s share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income to profit or
loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.

(b)

Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received.
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will
be recognised in accordance with FRS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is classified as equity, it is not remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.
In business combinations achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree are remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
The Group elects for each individual business combination, whether non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any) is
recognised on the acquisition date at fair value, or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.
Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business combination, the amount of noncontrolling interest in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any), over the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. In instances
where the latter amount exceeds the former, the excess is recognised as gain on bargain purchase in profit or loss on the
acquisition date.

3.5

Subsidiary companies
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.
In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment losses.
A list of the Group’s subsidiary companies is shown in Note 18.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 July 2014

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.6

Transactions with non-controlling interest
Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to owners of the Company.
Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

3.7

Foreign currency
The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars, which is also the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency.
(a)

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating those
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the end of
the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss except for exchange differences arising on monetary items that
form part of the Group’s net investment in foreign operations, which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve in equity. The foreign currency translation reserve
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign subsidiary.

(b)

Consolidated financial statements
For consolidation purpose, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into SGD at the rate of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period and their profit or loss are translated at average exchange rates for the
reporting period. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognised in other comprehensive income.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss.
In the case of a partial disposal without loss of control of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interest and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For partial disposals of associates or jointly controlled entities that are foreign operations,
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

3.8

Property, plant and equipment
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and
equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (Note 3.10).
The initial cost of an item comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working
condition and location for its intended use. Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included as part of the cost of
property, plant and equipment if the obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration is incurred as a consequence of
acquiring or using the asset. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance of overhaul costs is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which the costs are
incurred. In situation where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item beyond its originally assessed standard of performance,
the expenditure is capitalised as additional cost of property, plant and equipment. When assets are sold or retired, their cost
and accumulated depreciation are removed from the financial statements and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal
is included in the profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and continues until the asset is derecognised, even if it is idle.
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Computer equipment			
Office and operating equipment		
Plant and equipment			
Furniture and fixtures			
Leasehold improvement and renovation		

3 years
3 years
3 years
Over the remaining lease period of 6 years
Over the remaining lease period of 6 years

Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use and no further
charge for depreciation is made in respect of these assets.
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively,
if appropriate.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.
3.9

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial acquisition, intangible assets are measured at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the year in which
the expenditure is incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over the estimated useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are
reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives or not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if the events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life assessment continues to be supportable. If not the change in useful
life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
Franchises and licenses
Acquired franchises and licences are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses
(Note 3.10). Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the franchise/licence over the
term of the franchise/licence ranging from 1 – 6 years.
Customer database and contract
Customer database and contract were acquired from acquisition of business concept, and their cost is their fair value as at
the date of acquisition. Their carrying amounts are cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses
(Note 3.10). Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost over the term of the contract of
28 months.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately
for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations are generally covering up to the end of the contractual lease period.
Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the profit or loss, except for assets that are previously revalued
where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised
previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
3.11 Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement
The Group has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity
investments or available-for-sale financial assets.
The subsequent measurement of financial assets classified as loans and receivables is as follows:
Loans and receivables
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified
as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables
are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.11 Financial assets (cont’d)
Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired. On derecognition
of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
3.12 Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly or if an amount
was charged to the allowance account, the amounts charged to the allowance account are written off against the carrying
value of the financial asset.
To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been incurred, the Group
considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant
delay in payments.
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised
in profit or loss.
3.13 Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial liabilities not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement
The Group has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. For financial
liabilities at amortised cost, after initial recognition, the financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised, and
through the amortisation process.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.13 Financial liabilities (cont’d)
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statements of financial position,
when and only when, there is a currently enforceable legal right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
3.14 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
3.15 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition are accounted at cost determined on a weighted average basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated selling expenses necessary
to make the sale.
3.16 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
of the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cost.
3.17 Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the countries in which it has operations. In
particular, the Singapore companies in the Group make contributions to the Central Provident Fund scheme in Singapore, a
defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related service is performed.
3.18 Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at inception date: whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
For arrangements entered into prior to 1 January 2005, the date of inception is deemed to be 1 January 2005 in accordance
with the transitional requirements of INT FRS 104.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.18 Leases (cont’d)
As lessee
Finance leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased
item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Any initial direct costs are also added to the amount capitalised. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged to profit or loss.
Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term, if there
is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.
3.19 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and revenue can
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue for the Group comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and rendering of services, net of goods and services tax, rebates
and discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it
is acting as principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
(a)

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the Group has delivered the products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products and collectibility of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b)

Operating fee revenue
Operating fee revenue is recognised based on the contractual terms as established with respective contractual parties.

(c)

Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income is recognised upon performance of specific services or events agreed with respective contractual
parties based on the percentage of completion of the transaction.

(d)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

(e)

Franchise and royalty fees
Fees charged for the use of continuing rights granted by the franchise agreement are recognised as income as the
rights used based on contractual percentages of revenue generated by the franchisee.

3.20 Taxes
(a)

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, in the countries where the Group operates
and generate taxable income.
Current income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.20 Taxes (cont’d)
(b)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:
•

Where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

•

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:
•

Where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

•

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of each reporting period.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
and deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill on acquisition.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current income
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that
date, would be recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances changed. The adjustment
would either be treated as a reduction to goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if it is incurred during the
measurement period or in profit or loss.
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3.20 Taxes (cont’d)
(c)

Sales tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except:
•

Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item
as applicable; and

•

Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the statements of financial position.
3.21 Segment reporting
A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing products or services that
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment is a
distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of components operating in other economic
environments.
The Group is substantially in one business segment, namely lifestyle and entertainment, and all its subsidiaries are in Singapore
except for one subsidiary in Pattaya, Thailand. Accordingly, segment information is presented in Note 30.
3.22 Share capital and share issuance expenses
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted against share capital.
3.23 Contingencies
A contingent liability is:
(a)		

a possible obligation or asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of uncertain future event(s) not wholly within the control of the Group; or

(b)		 a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
(i)		 It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or
(ii)		 The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the statement of financial position of the Group.
3.24 Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:
(a)		 A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group and Company if that person:
(i)		 has control or joint control over the Company;
(ii)		 has significant influence over the Company; or
		 (iii)		 is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or Company or of a parent of the Company.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.24 Related parties (cont’d)
(b)		 An entity is related to the Group and the Company if any of the following conditions applies:
(i)		 the entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
(ii)		 one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).
(iii)		 both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv)		 one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
(v)		

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company or an entity related
to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the Company.

(vi)		 the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
(vii)

4.

a person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Significant accounting judgments and estimates
The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the end of each reporting period. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

4.1

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period are discussed below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur.
(a)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the property, plant and equipment may
be impaired. Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable.
When recoverable amount based on value in use calculations is undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the assets or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The details of the determination of the value in use are disclosed in Note 15 to the
financial statements.
The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 31 July 2014 is $2,028,000 (2013: $4,680,000).
For the financial year ended 31 July 2014, the amount of impairment loss on property, plant and equipment is
$1,778,000 (2013: $Nil).

(b)

Impairment of loans and receivables
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated based
on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. In the financial year ended 31 July 2014,
the Group has made an allowance for impairment of $205,000 (2013: $Nil). The carrying amount of the Group’s loans
and receivables at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements.
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Significant accounting judgments and estimates (cont’d)
(c)

Provision for reinstatement costs
The Group has recognised a provision for reinstatement cost associated with the leased premises. In determining the
amount of the provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to the expected costs of dismantling, removal
and restoration of its leased premises to their original conditions. The Group has used the mid-point of the expected
range based on historical experience and quotation provided by an external contractor. The carrying amount of the
provision as at 31 July 2014 was $1,134,000 (2013: $1,134,000). Management expects no material change in the
obligation of reinstatement from the previous year.

(d)

Impairment of investment in and amounts due from subsidiaries
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the investment in and amounts due
from subsidiaries may be impaired. This requires an estimation of the recoverable amounts of the subsidiaries. Estimating
the recoverable amounts requires the Company to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash
generating units (outlets) and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The key assumptions used to estimate the recoverable amounts of the investment in the subsidiaries and
the amounts due from subsidiaries are similar to those used to determine the recoverable amounts of property, plant
and equipment as disclosed in Note 15. The carrying amounts of the Company’s investment in and amounts due from
subsidiaries as at 31 July 2014 are $321,000 (2013: $321,000) and $4,056,000 (2013: $8,511,000) respectively. In the
financial year ended 31 July 2014, the Company made an additional allowance of $5,352,000 (2013: $Nil) and reversed
excess allowance of $304,000 (2013: $831,000) for impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries upon collection.
Investment in and amount due from a subsidiary not impaired
The carrying amount of the Company’s investment in subsidiaries of $321,000 (2013: $321,000) which is not impaired
as at 31 July 2014 represents the cost of investment in LifeBrandz (Thailand) Co. Ltd which holds Mulligan’s Co. Ltd in
Thailand (Note 18). The non-current other receivable balance not impaired of the Company amounting to $621,000
(2013: $593,000) represents the amount due from Mulligan’s Co. Ltd (Note 17). No impairment has been recognised
on the above-mentioned balances because management is of the judgment that the carrying amounts of these assets
are recoverable based on the discounted cash flow forecast covering a period of four years for the outlet in Thailand
operated by Mulligan’s Co. Ltd. The key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow forecast are as follows:

5.

•

Budgeted gross margin – Gross margin is based on average values achieved in the two years preceding the start
of the budget period.

•

Revenue growth rate – The forecasted growth rate is 2.5% which approximates the average forecasted inflation
rate in Thailand published by a reliable institution.

•

Pre-tax discount rate – The discount rate adopted is 13.7%, which approximates the historical weighted average
cost of capital (WACC).

Revenue

											
											
											

Group
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Food and beverage revenue					
20,071
20,666
Tobacco product revenue					
75
90
Operating fee revenue						
1,397
2,107
										
21,543
22,863
			
Operating fee revenue pertains to revenue from the joint operating of F&B outlets with related and external parties.
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6.

Other operating income

											
Group
											
2014
2013
											
$’000
$’000
									
(Restated)
Sponsorship income						
253
1,344
Franchise and royalty fees					
11
9
Others								
210
193
										
474
1,546
			
Sponsorship income mainly relates to funds from sponsoring banks or merchants to support the Group’s marketing activities
for specified periods, and incentives received from vendors upon performance of specific services or events.

7.

Employee benefits

											
Group
											
2014
2013
											
$’000
$’000
			
Wages and salaries and related benefits					
6,072
6,793
Employer’s contribution to Central Provident Fund				
505
599
Directors’ fees						
121
106
Other benefits and related expenses					
554
640
										
7,252
8,138

8.

Finance costs

											
											
											
			
Interest expense on finance lease					

9.

Group
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

1

1

Legal and professional fees

Legal and professional fees included the following for the years ended 31 July:
											
Group
											
2014
2013
											
$’000
$’000
			
Legal fees							
7
10
Reversal of overprovision for legal fees					
(44)
–
Audit fees paid/payable to:					
– Auditors of the Group					
200
186
Non-audit fees paid/payable to:			
– Auditors of the Group					
50
75
– Others						
30
36
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10. Other operating expenses
The following items have been included in arriving at other operating expenses:
											
Group
											
2014
2013
											
$’000
$’000
			
Bad debts written off (Note 17)					
–
3
IT services expense						
56
70
Utilities								
272
310
Credit card commission						
271
225
Cleaning services						
146
160
Repairs and maintenance					
95
143
Property, plant and equipment written off				
28
–
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment				
–
(20)
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)					
27
(53)

11. Impairment losses
											
											
											
			
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment				
Impairment loss on intangible assets					
Impairment loss on trade receivables					
										

Group
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

1,778
1,160
205
3,143

–
–
–
–

12. Income tax
Major components of income tax credit
The major components of income tax credit for the years ended 31 July 2014 and 2013 are:
											
											
											
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income:			
Current income tax:			
Current income taxation					
	Under-provision in respect of previous years				
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income		

Group
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

(3)
–
(3)

–
(13)
(13)
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12. Income tax (cont’d)
The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting (loss)/profit multiplied by the applicable corporate tax
rate for the years ended 31 July 2014 and 2013 are as follows:
											
Group
											
2014
2013
											
$’000
$’000
			
(Loss)/profit before tax						
(6,769)
215
			
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 17% (2013: 17%)
(1,151)
37
Adjustments:			
Income not subject to taxation					
(19)
(75)
Non-deductible expenses					
282
62
Effect of partial exemption and tax relief				
(5)
(49)
	Under provision in respect of previous years				
–
13
Deferred tax assets not recognised					
946
48
Benefits from previously unrecognised tax losses				
(50)
(13)
Others							
–
(10)
										
3
13

13. Deferred tax
As at 31 July 2014, the Group has unabsorbed tax losses and capital allowances of approximately $19,842,000 and $880,000
(2013: $18,422,000 and $952,000) respectively that are available for offset against future taxable profits of the companies in
which these arose for which no deferred tax asset is recognised due to the uncertainty of its recoverability. The use of these
tax losses and capital allowances are subject to agreement of the tax authorities.

14. (Loss)/earnings per share
Basic (loss)/earnings per share are calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit, net of tax, attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share are the same as basic loss/(earnings) per share as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares.
											
											
			
Net (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company			
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (cents per share)				
			
										
										
											
			
Weighted average number of ordinary shares				

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

(5,751)

375

(0.25)

0.02

No. of
shares
’000

No. of
shares
’000

2,281,712

1,910,000
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15. Property, plant and equipment
									
Motor vehicle,		 Leasehold
									 office and Furniture improvement
								
Computer
operating
and
and Plant and ConstructionGroup						
equipment equipment
fixtures renovation equipment
in-progress
								 $’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000

Total
$’000

Cost:							
At 1 August 2012		
522
433
1,566
5,181
2,747
–
10,449
Additions				
35
–
80
1,510
326
111
2,062
Write off				
(17)
(57)
(856)
(6)
(709)
–
(1,645)
Disposals				
–
–
–
–
(318)
–
(318)
At 31 July 2013
		 and 1 August 2013		
540
376
790
6,685
2,046
111
10,548
Additions				
12
–
97
115
135
125
484
Write off				
(3)
(2)
(64)
(43)
(34)
–
(146)
Reclassification		
–
–
8
172
25
(205)
–
At 31 July 2014		
549
374
831
6,929
2,172
31
10,886
							
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss:							
At 1 August 2012		
512
388
1,238
2,389
2,337
–
6,864
Depreciation			45
34
63
600
220
–
962
Write off				
(17)
(57)
(856)
(1)
(714)
–
(1,645)
Disposals				
–
–
–
–
(313)
–
(313)
At 31 July 2013
		 and 1 August 2013		
540
365
445
2,988
1,530
–
5,868
Depreciation			
4
11
88
927
300
–
1,330
Write off				
(3)
(2)
(46)
(36)
(31)
–
(118)
Impairment loss		
–
–
107
1,487
184
–
1,778
At 31 July 2014		
541
374
594
5,366
1,983
–
8,858
							
Net carrying value:							
At 31 July 2014			
8
–
237
1,563
189
31
2,028
							
At 31 July 2013			
–
11
345
3,697
516
111
4,680
							
									
Leasehold
								Office and
Furniture improvement
							
Computer
operating
and
and
		 Company				
equipment
equipment
fixtures
renovation
Total
					
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
					
Cost:					
At 31 July 2013,
1 August 2013 and 31 July 2014
88
99
24
–
211
					
Accumulated depreciation:					
At 31 July 2013,
1 August 2013 and 31 July 2014
88
99
24
–
211
					
Net carrying value:					
At 31 July 2013 and 31 July 2014
–
–
–
–
–
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15. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
Asset held under finance lease
The net carrying value of the motor vehicle held under finance lease at the end of the reporting period was $Nil
(2013: $4,000).
The leased asset was pledged as security for the related finance lease liabilities.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
During the financial year, management carried out a review of the recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
associated to three outlets and an operating contract of the Group in Singapore, where each of these outlets represents a
cash-generating unit (CGU) which has been incurring losses or performing below expectations. Accordingly, an impairment
loss of $1,778,000 (2013: $Nil), representing the write down of the relevant property, plant and equipment to the recoverable
amount was recognised in “Impairment losses” (Note 11) line item of profit or loss for the financial year ended 31 July 2014.
Key assumptions used in the value in use calculations
The calculations of value in use for the above-mentioned CGUs are sensitive to the following assumptions:
•

Revenue growth rates – The forecasted growth rates for revenue from the outlets range from 2.4% to 9.0% which
approximate the historical growth rates of the outlets.

•

Budgeted gross margin – Gross margin is based on historical value achieved of 74% for the year ended 31 July 2014 as
management believed that it represents a relevant margin for the foreseeable future operations within the forecast period.

•

Pre-tax discount rate – The discount rate adopted is 13.7%, which approximates the Group’s historical weighted
average cost of capital (WACC).

•

Forecast period – Based on the remaining economic useful lives of furniture and fixtures, leasehold improvement and
renovations of these outlets. The calculations cover up to the remaining lease period, which is less than four years.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
With regards to the assessment of value in use for the four CGUs under review, any adverse change in a key assumption
would result in a further impairment loss. Management believes that no reasonably possible changes in the above key
assumptions would cause the carrying value of the units to materially exceed the recoverable amount.

16. Fixed deposit pledged
The Group’s and the Company’s fixed deposit is pledged to secure a bankers’ guarantee for a security deposit pertaining to
a tenancy agreement, granted to a subsidiary company.
Fixed deposits are placed with banks at interest rates ranging from 0.62% to 0.67% per annum.
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17. Trade and other receivables
										Group
								
2014
									
$’000
						
Trade receivables (current):
Third parties				
676
Amounts due from related parties			
111
Amounts due from subsidiaries			
–
								
787
							
Other receivables (current):
Third parties				
34
Deposits					
96
Amounts due from subsidiaries			
–
								
130
Total trade and other receivables (current)		

917

Other receivables (non-current):
Amounts due from subsidiaries			
–
Loan to a subsidiary				
–
Deposits						
91
							
Total trade and other receivables
(current and non-current)			
1,008
Add:							
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21)			
1,132
Fixed deposit pledged (Note 16)			
1,980
Total loans and receivables
(current and non-current)			
4,120
							
Bad debts written off directly to the statement of
comprehensive income (Note 10)			
–

2013
$’000

Company
2014
2013
$’000
$’000

1,231
121
–
1,352

–
–
49
49

–
–
4,805
4,805

24
–
–
24

4
–
3,386
3,390

4
–
228
232

1,376

3,439

5,037

–
–
–

621
–
–

2,478
1,000
–

1,376

4,060

8,515

1,227
1,980

53
1,980

234
1,980

4,583

6,093

10,729

3

–

–

Trade receivables (current)
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 60 days’ terms. They are recognised at their original
invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition.
Trade and other receivables denominated in foreign currency at 31 July are as follows:
										Group
								
2014
2013
									
$’000
$’000
						
Thai Baht					
90
90

Company
2014
2013
$’000
$’000
–

–

Amounts due from related parties and subsidiaries (current)
Trade receivable due from related parties and subsidiaries are trade related, unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand by cash.
Other receivables due from subsidiaries are non-trade related, unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand
by cash.
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17. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)
Amounts due from subsidiaries (non-current)
Amounts receivable from subsidiaries are non-trade related, unsecured, non-interest bearing and has no fixed terms of
repayment, and are not expected to be repaid within the next 12 months.
Loan to a subsidiary (non-current)
Loan to a subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest bearing and has no fixed term of repayment, and are not expected to be
repaid within the next 12 months.
Receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Group and the Company have trade and other receivables amounting to $139,000 (2013: $265,000) and $Nil (2013:
$702,000) respectively that are past due at the end of the reporting period but not impaired. These receivables are unsecured
and the analysis of their aging at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
										Group
Company
								
2014
2013
2014
2013
									
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
						
Trade receivables past due but not impaired:						
31 to 60 days				
25
159
–
–
61 to 90 days				
6
45
–
–
91 to 120 days				
46
36
–
–
More than 120 days				
62
25
–
–
								
139
265
–
–
Other receivables past due but not impaired:						
31 to 60 days				
–
–
–
3
61 to 90 days				
–
–
–
4
91 to 120 days				
–
–
–
3
More than 120 days				
–
–
–
692
								
–
–
–
702
Receivables that are impaired
The trade receivables that are individually impaired at the end of the reporting period and the movement of the allowance
accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:
										Group
Company
								
2014
2013
2014
2013
									
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
						
Trade receivables – nominal amounts			
205
–
15,210
15,503
Less: Allowance for impairment			
(205)
–
(15,161)
(11,587)
								
–
–
49
3,916
							
Movement in allowance accounts:						
At 1 August				
–
–
11,587
11,587
Charge for the year				
205
–
3,574
–
At 31 July				
205
–
15,161
11,587
							
Other receivables – nominal amounts			
–
–
12,306
9,563
Less: Allowance for impairment			
–
–
(8,920)
(8,446)
								
–
–
3,386
1,117
							
Movement in allowance accounts:						
At 1 August				
–
–
8,446
9,277
Charge for the year				
–
–
778
–
Reversal for the year				
–
–
(304)
(831)
At 31 July				
–
–
8,920
8,446
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17. Trade and other receivables (cont’d)
Receivables that are impaired (cont’d)
										Group
								
2014
2013
									
$’000
$’000

Company
2014
2013
$’000
$’000

Loan to a subsidiary – nominal amount			
–
–
1,000
–
Less: Allowance for impairment			
–
–
(1,000)
–
								
–
–
–
–
							
Movement in allowance accounts:						
At 1 August				
–
–
–
–
Charge for the year				
–
–
1,000
–
At 31 July				
–
–
1,000
–
							
Trade and other receivables and loan to a subsidiary that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the
reporting period relate to receivables that are in significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These
receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has provided an allowance of $25,081,000 (2013: $20,033,000) for
impairment of the amounts due from subsidiaries with a nominal amount of $28,516,000 (2013: $25,066,000). These
subsidiaries have been making losses for the prior and current financial years.

18. Investment in subsidiaries
											
Company
								
			
2014
2013
											
$’000
$’000
						
Shares, at cost						
4,021
4,021
Impairment losses						
(3,700)
(3,700)
										
321
321
No further impairment losses on investment in subsidiaries are identified in the financial year ended 31 July 2014.

Name

Principal activities

Country of
incorporation
and place of
business

Proportion
(%) of
ownership
interest
2014
2013
%
%

Cost of
investment
by the
Company
2014
2013
$’000 $’000

Held by the Company
Brandz+ Pte Ltd (a)

Provision of corporate services
to related companies

Singapore

100

100

*

*

Orientstar Group Limited (b)

Dormant

British Virgin
Islands

100

100

*

*

LB Investments Limited (b)

Dormant

Mauritius

100

100

*

*

Luminox Pte Ltd

Provision of leasing, licensing
and consultancy services to
related companies

Singapore

100

100

2,000

2,000

Balcony Pte Ltd (a)

Lifestyle and entertainment businesses

Singapore

100

100

200

200

Palms Development
Pte Ltd (a)

Dormant

Singapore

100

100

200

200

(a)
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18. Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d)

Name

Principal activities

Country of
incorporation
and place of
business

Cost of
investment
by the
Company
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Proportion
(%) of
ownership
interest
2014 2013
%
%

Held by the Company (cont’d)
Cannery Holding Pte Ltd (a)

Investment holding

Singapore

80

80

800

800

Lux Leisure Pte Ltd (a)

Lifestyle and entertainment business

Singapore

100

100

*

*

Mulligan’s Pte Ltd (a)

Intellectual property licensing
and management

Singapore

100

100

500

500

LifeBrandz
(Thailand) Co Ltd (c)

Investment holding

Thailand

100

321

321

(d)

100

(d)

Held through Cannery Holding Pte Ltd
Cannery Leisure Pte Ltd (a)

Lifestyle and entertainment businesses

Singapore

80

80

–

–

The Cannery Pte Ltd
(formerly known as Ministry of
Sound Pte Ltd) (a)

Dormant

Singapore

80

80

–

–

Mercier Group Pte Ltd (a)

Dormant

Singapore

80

80

–

–

Tribeca Leisure Pte Ltd (a)

Lifestyle and entertainment businesses

Singapore

80

80

–

–

–

–

4,021

4,021

Held through LifeBrandz (Thailand) Co Ltd
Mulligan’s Co Ltd (c)

Lifestyle and entertainment businesses

Audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore.
Not required to be audited under the laws of the country of incorporation.
(c)
Audited by a member firm of EY Global.
(d)
Effective interest of ownership.
* denotes less than $1,000.
(a)

(b)

Thailand

100

(d)

100

(d)
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Customer
database
contract
$’000

Total
$’000

–

2,182

583
1,915
2,498

583
1,915
4,680

–
(268)
(268)
(1,070)
(1,160)
(2,498)

(2,182)
(268)
(2,450)
(1,070)
(1,160)
(4,680)

–

–
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19. Intangible assets
									
									
								
		
										

Fanchises
and
licenses
$’000

Cost:			
At 1 August 2012					
2,182
Additions			
		Customer database				
–
		Contract					
–
At 31 July 2013, 1 August 2013 and 31 July 2014			
2,182
			
Accumulated amortisation and impairment:			
At 1 August 2012					
(2,182)
Amortisation 					
–
At 31 July 2013 and 1 August 2013				
(2,182)
Amortisation					
–
Impairment loss					
–
At 31 July 2014					
(2,182)
			
Net carrying amount:			
At 31 July 2014					
–

At 31 July 2013					
–
2,230
2,230
			
Acquisition of customer database and contract
On 30 April 2013 (the “acquisition date”), the Group’s subsidiary company, Lux Leisure Pte Ltd (“Lux”) acquired the business
and assets of a related party, Qumulus Pte Ltd (“Qumulus”) in relation to its collaboration rights to a lounge and club named
Mink and Royal Room (“the Club”). In connection with the acquisition, Qumulus had granted a $500,000 loan to Lux, as
disclosed in Note 24.
The acquisition was made in order to increase the Group’s competitiveness and profile in the lifestyle entertainment industry.
The acquisition was funded by the issuance of 300,000,000 new ordinary shares priced at $0.0097 in the Company to
Qumulus (the “consideration”), amounting to $2,910,000. The fair value of these shares was the published price of the
shares at the acquisition date.
The cost of the acquired customer database and contract is the fair value as of the acquisition date, and has been determined
to be the same as that of the consideration.
The attributable cost of the issuance of the shares of $35,000 was recognised directly in equity as a deduction from the
Company’s share capital. $412,000 relating to pre-acquisition proceeds to the Group was recognised as a discount to
the consideration.
An independent valuer was engaged to assess the fair value of the intangible assets as at the acquisition date, based
on management’s estimated expected cash flows from the contract. The multi-excess earnings method was used for the
valuation, with the following key assumptions applied, and the life of the contract was extended until August 2015 based
on both parties’ intention to continue the collaboration for another year:
–
–
–

revenue growth in the range of -17% to 3% over the period of the contract
applied discount rate of 16.3%
successful renewal of the rental lease for the Club’s premise upon expiry in August 2014

Impairment of customer database and contract
During the financial year, an impairment loss was recognised to write down the carrying amount of customer database
and contract. The impairment loss of $1,160,000 (2013: $Nil) has been recognised in profit or loss under the line item
“Impairment losses” as disclosed in Note 11. The impairment loss was as a result of closure of Mink and Royal Room in May
2014 with a share of loss for the year amounted to $253,000 (2013: Share of profit $339,000) borne by Lux Leisure Pte Ltd
and the contract for the collaboration rights was terminated with effect from 31 July 2014.
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20. Inventories
											
Group
								
			
2014
2013
											
$’000
$’000
											(Restated)
Statement of financial position:						
Finished goods at cost						
315
337
			
Statement of comprehensive income:
		
Inventories recognised as an expense					
5,810
4,731
			
The directors are of the view that no allowance for inventory obsolescence is required on these fast moving inventory items.

21. Cash and cash equivalents
										Group
								
2014
									
$’000
						
Cash at banks and on hand			
1,106
Fixed deposits				 26
Cash and cash equivalents			
1,132
							
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

2013
$’000
1,213
14
1,227

Company
2014
2013
$’000
$’000
27
26
53

220
14
234

Fixed deposits are made for varying periods depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and the Company,
and earn interests at the respective fixed deposit rates. Fixed deposits are placed with banks at interest rates ranging from
0.62% to 0.67% (2013: 0.20% to 0.75%) per annum.
Cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currency at 31 July are as follows:
										Group
								
2014
2013
									
$’000
$’000
							
Thai Baht					
199
145

Company
2014
2013
$’000
$’000
–

–

22. Trade and other payables
										Group
Company
								
2014
2013
2014
2013
									
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
							
Trade payables:							
Third parties				
1,693
2,909
21
42
Subsidiaries				
–
–
60
50
Related parties				
46
173
–
–
Other payables: 							
Third parties				
406
856
81
79
Subsidiaries				
–
–
3,026
4,522
Accrued operating expenses			
1,019
932
227
206
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost		
3,164
4,870
3,415
4,899
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22. Trade and other payables (cont’d)
Trade payables/other payables
These amounts are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 60 days’ terms.
Trade payables denominated in foreign currency as at 31 July are as follows:
										Group
Company
								
2014
2013
2014
2013
									
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
							
Thai Baht					
65
46
–
–
							
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Amounts payable to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand by cash.

23. Finance lease
Future minimum lease payments for motor vehicle together with the present value of the net minimum payments are
as follows:

								
								
								
								
									
							
No later than one year representing
total minimum lease payments			
Less: Amounts representing finance charges		
Present value of minimum lease payments		

Minimum
lease
payments
2014
$’000

–
–
–

Group
Present
Minimum
value of
lease
payments
payments
2014
2013
$’000
$’000

–
–
–

Present
value of
payments
2013
$’000

3
(1)
2

2
–
2

24. Loans and borrowings
The loan was granted by a related party, Qumulus Pte Ltd, in connection with the acquisition of intangible assets during the
financial year ended 31 July 2013, as disclosed in Note 19.
The loan was non-secured and non-interest bearing and fully repaid during the financial year ended 31 July 2014.

25. Provision for reinstatement costs
											
								
			
											
			
Balance at beginning and end of year					

Group
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

1,134

1,134

Provision for reinstatement costs is the estimated costs of restoring retail outlets to their original conditions, which are
capitalised and included in the cost of fixed assets. The provision is expected to be utilised at the end of the lease terms.
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26. Share capital
					
Group and Company
								
2014		
2013
								
No. of		
No. of
								
shares
Amount
shares
Amount
									
’000
$’000
’000
$’000
							
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares						
At 1 August 				
Issuance of shares				
Share issuance expense				
At 31 July					

2,135,000
425,000
–
2,560,000

49,951
3,442
(57)
53,336

1,835,000
300,000
–
2,135,000

47,076
2,910
(35)
49,951

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares
carry one vote per share without restrictions. The ordinary shares have no par value.

27. Commitments
Operating lease commitments – as lessee
The Group has entered into non-cancellable commercial leases on various offices, shops, other premises and certain office
equipment. These leases have an average tenure of five to six years with varying terms and escalation clauses but no
renewal option.
Minimum lease payments recognised as an expense in profit or loss for the financial year ended 31 July 2014 amounted to
$5,097,000 (2013: $5,100,000).
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases contracted for at the reporting date but not
recognised as liabilities, computed based on the agreed rental rates are as follows:
										Group
Company
								
2014
2013
2014
2013
									
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
							
Not later than one year				
4,676
4,572
–
528
Later than one year but not later than five years		
12,665
17,275
–
–
								
17,341
21,847
–
528
							
Under the lease terms for the leased premises, the Group shall pay a monthly variable rent, computed based on a certain
percentage of monthly gross revenue generated by the Group’s operations at the leased premises. The base rent for the lease
arrangement increases over the lease term. The Group has incurred $275,000 (2013: $295,000) of variable rental expenses
in the current financial year.
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28. Legal matters
(a)		 On 29 October 2009, the Company and four of its subsidiaries were served with a Writ of Summon under Suit No.
894/2009/H (“Suit 894/2009”) for breach of contract as filed by Giorgio Ferrari Pte Ltd (“GFPL”).
		 By way of an Order of Court dated 25 May 2012, the High Court of Singapore dismissed GFPL’s claim in the Writ
and ordered cost of the action to be paid by GFPL to the Company and the four subsidiaries. GFPL has filed a notice
of appeal in the High Court of Singapore to appeal against the Order of Court dated 25 May 2012 that dismissed
GFPL’s claim. The High Court of Singapore has wholly dismissed the GFPL’s Appeal on 31 July 2012. GFPL has filed
a Notice of Appeal on 29 Aug 2012 to the Court of Appeal to appeal against the dismissal of the HC Appeal
(“CA Appeal”). Accordingly, GFPL was to file the Record of Appeal by 16 November 2012, failing which, the
CA Appeal shall be deemed to have been withdrawn. GFPL failed to file and serve its Record of Appeal by 16 November
2012. Consequently, the court informed the parties on 19 November 2012 that the CA Appeal is now deemed to have
been withdrawn.
		 During the financial year, the Group received compensation from GFPL amounting to $101,000 included in
“Other operating income” (Note 6).
(b)		 On 5 July 2012, the Company’s subsidiary, Cannery Leisure Pte Ltd, was served with a Writ of Summon in Suit No. 556
of 2012/V by Mint Studio (“MS”) for monies allegedly due in respect of renovation works carried out by MS.
		 By the Writ of Summons, MS was claiming an alleged sum of $728,365 from the subsidiary for monies allegedly due
in respect of renovation works carried out by MS. Management contested that this alleged sum was amount relating
to variation orders that had not been agreed to by management. Further, the subsidiary made a counterclaim against
MS for defective works which the subsidiary is entitled to set-off from MS’s claim.
		

On 5 July 2013, the Company announced that the parties have, on 4 July 2013 entered into a settlement agreement in
respect of the suit. Pursuant to the terms of the settlement, the Notice of Discontinuance has been filed with the High
Court on 19 July 2013.

		

As of 31 July 2013 and 2014, there were no outstanding legal claims that would have a material financial effect on the
results of the Group.

29. Related party transactions
(a)

Compensation of key management personnel

											
								
			
								
			
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits				
Post-employment benefits – contribution to Central Provident Fund			
								

Group and Company
2014
2013
$’000
$’000
527
27
554

734
36
770

Included in the above is total compensation for directors of the Company amounting to $302,000 (2013: $441,000).
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29. Related party transactions (cont’d)
(b)

Sale and purchase of goods and services

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following significant
transactions between the Group or the Company and related parties took place at terms agreed between the parties
during the financial year:
										Group
Company
								
2014
2013
2014
2013
									
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
							
Related companies (a)					
Operating fee revenue			
1,650
1,768
–
–
							
Subsidiaries
Rental on operating lease			
–
–
(528)
(521)
Purchase of shared services			
–
–
(36)
(36)
(a)

These are entities with common directors or key management personnel of the Company.

30. Segment information
The Group is substantially in one business segment, namely lifestyle and entertainment. All of its operations are in Singapore,
except for a subsidiary – Mulligan’s Co. Ltd, which is located in Pattaya, Thailand.
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their geographical location.
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss which
in certain respects, as explained in the table below, is measured differently from operating profit or loss in the consolidated
financial statements.
(a) Geographical segment
							
Singapore
Thailand
Consolidated
							
2014
2013
2014
2013
2014
2013
							
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
						
Revenue:						
Sales to external
customers		20,385
21,853
1,158
1,010
21,543
22,863
						
Results:						
Interest income		13
14
–
–
13
14
Depreciation		1,188
802
142
160
1,330
962
Amortisation		1,070
268
–
–
1,070
268
Impairment losses		3,143
–
–
–
3,143
–
Other non-cash expenses (1)
28
–
–
–
28
–
Segment (loss)/profit
(6,772)
202
–
–
(6,772)
202
						
Assets/(liabilities):						
Property, plant and
equipment		1,880
4,380
148
300
2,028
4,680
Additions to
non-current assets
482
4,558
2
2
484
4,560
Segment assets (2)		6,709
12,262
498
589
6,586
12,143
Segment liabilities (3)
(3,818)
(5,896)
(662)
(760)
(4,466)
(6,642)
(1)
(2)

(3)

Other non-cash expenses relates to property, plant and equipment written off as presented in the respective notes to the financial statements.
Segment assets relate to total assets of the respective segment. Inter-segment assets of $621,000 (2013: $708,000) are deducted from
segment assets to arrive at total assets reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Segment liabilities relate to total liabilities of the respective segment. Inter-segment liabilities of $14,000 (2013: $14,000) are deducted
from segment liabilities to arrive at total liabilities reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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30. Segment information (cont’d)
(b)

Information on major customers
The Group generates its revenue from transactions with numerous customers and no customer contributes more than
10% of the Group’s revenue.

31. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments. The
key financial risks include credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for
the management of these risks, which are executed by the Chief Financial Officer. The audit committee provides independent
oversight to the effectiveness of the risk management process.
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and fixed deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.
It is, and has been throughout the current and previous financial years, the Group’s policy that no trade in derivative financial
instruments shall be undertaken.
The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to the above-mentioned financial
risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.
There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures
the risks.
(a)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty default on its
obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables.
For other financial assets (including cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposit), the Group and the Company minimise
credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.
The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to increased credit
risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Exposure to credit risk
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amounts of each class of financial assets recognised in the statements of financial position.
Credit risk concentration profile
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are with creditworthy debtors with good payment
record with the Group. Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits that are neither past due nor impaired are placed
with or entered into with reputable financial institutions or companies with high credit ratings and no history of default.
Financial assets that are either past due or impaired
Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosed in Note 17, (Trade and
other receivables).
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(b)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due
to shortage of funds. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of
the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s and the Company’s objective is to maintain sufficient level
of cash and short-term deposits to meet its working capital requirements. The Group maintains a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of stand-by financial and credit facilities.
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the operations of the Group and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Short-term funding may be obtained from short-term loans where necessary without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Group’s reputation.
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities at the
end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

								
						
1 year
						
or less
							
$’000

2014			
1 to 5		
1 year
years
Total
or less
$’000
$’000
$’000

2013
1 to 5
years
$’000

Total
$’000

Group							
							
Financial assets							
Trade and other receivables
917
91
1,008
1,376
–
1,376
Cash and cash equivalents 1,132
–
1,132
1,227
–
1,227
Fixed deposit pledged
–
2,027
2,027
–
2,024
2,024
Total undiscounted
financial assets		 2,049
2,118
4,167
2,603
2,024
4,627
							
Financial liabilities
						
Trade and other payables
3,164
–
3,164
4,870
–
4,870
Finance lease		 –
–
–
2
–
2
Loans and borrowings
–
–
–
500
–
500
Total undiscounted
financial liabilities
3,164
–
3,164
5,372
–
5,372
							
Total net undiscounted
financial assets/
(liabilities)		 (1,115)
2,118
1,003
(2,769)
2,024
(745)
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(b)

Liquidity risk (cont’d)
Analysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities (cont’d)

								
						
1 year
						
or less
							
$’000

2014			
1 to 5		
1 year
years
Total
or less
$’000
$’000
$’000

2013
1 to 5
years
$’000

Total
$’000

Company							
							
Financial assets							
Trade and other receivables 3,439
621
4,060
5,037
3,478
8,515
Cash and cash equivalents
53
–
53
234
–
234
Fixed deposit pledged
–
2,027
2,027
–
2,024
2,024
							
Total undiscounted
financial assets		 3,492
2,648
6,140
5,271
5,502
10,773
							
Financial liabilities							
Trade and other payables
3,415
–
3,415
4,899
–
4,899
							
Total undiscounted
financial liabilities
3,415
–
3,415
4,899
–
4,899
							
Total net undiscounted
financial assets		
77
2,648
2,725
372
5,502
5,874
							

32. Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable
approximation of fair value
Management has determined that the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables (current),
trade and other payables, fixed deposit pledged and finance lease, based on their notional amounts, reasonably approximate
their fair values because these are mostly short-term in nature or are repriced frequently.
Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are not reasonable
approximation of fair value
The non-current amounts due from subsidiaries and loan to a subsidiary have no repayment terms and is repayable only when
the cash flows of the borrower permits. Accordingly, the fair value of the loan is not determinable as the timing of the future
cash flows arising from the loan cannot be estimated reliably.

33. Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 July 2014 and
31 July 2013.
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33. Capital management (cont’d)
The Group monitors capital maintenance regularly, using a gearing ratio. The Group aims to keep the capital proportion at
a minimal level as revenues are generated mostly through cash and credit card settlement. The Group includes within net
debt, trade and other payables and accruals, bill payables, hire-purchase liabilities, loans and borrowings, less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to the owners of the Company. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing
ratio below 50%. As at the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have any financial covenants to comply with.
											
Group
								
			
2014
2013
											
$’000
$’000
			
Trade and other payables (Note 22)					
3,164
4,870
Finance lease (Note 23)						
–
2
Loans and borrowings (Note 24)					
–
500
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21)				
(1,132)
(1,227)
Net debt								
2,032
4,145
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company				
4,489
6,849
			
Capital and net debt						
6,521
10,994
			
Gearing ratio
31%
38%

34. Comparatives
Certain comparatives in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income have been restated to conform to current
year’s classification to better reflect the nature of the amounts as discussed below:
2013
											
As
										
As
previously
										
restated
stated
											
$’000
$’000
Due to reclassification of volume rebates from suppliers: 		
Other operating income (Note 6)					
Inventories and consumables used (Note 20)				

1,546
(4,731)

2,542
(5,727)

Volume rebates refer to contractual benefits granted by suppliers based on agreed purchase targets. Management had
treated such rebates as a direct reduction in the purchase price of inventory during the current financial year. In the previous
financial years, volume rebates were accounted for as other operating income when earned. Management considers that
restatement of comparatives is necessary so as to better reflect the nature of volume rebates.
The restatement results in reclassification in line items within the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
same reporting period which does not affect the (loss)/earnings per share to the owners of the Company. Neither does the
restatement affect the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity of the Group. Accordingly, the opening balance sheet
as of 1 August 2012 is not presented.

35. Authorisation of financial statements
The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 July 2014 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution
of the directors on 30 October 2014.
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Statistics of Shareholdings
As at 17 October 2014

Shareholders’ Information
Issued and fully paid-up capital
Number of shares			
Class of shares			

:
:
:

S$53,336,003
2,560,000,000
Ordinary shares of equal voting right

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS BY SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 17 OCTOBER 2014
Size of Shareholdings
No. of Shareholders
		
1 – 999 		
10
1,000 – 10,000		
827
10,001 – 1,000,000		
2,447
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 		
230
Total			
3,514

%

No. of Shares

%

0.28
23.53
69.64
6.55
100.00

3,515
3,879,500
465,446,217
2,090,670,768
2,560,000,000

0.00
0.15
18.18
81.67
100.00

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS				
No. Shareholder’s Name				

No. of Shares Held

%

1
Qumulus Pte Ltd
				
2	UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd
				
3
Maybank Kim Eng Securities Pte Ltd 			
4
DBS Nominees Pte Ltd
				
5
C.H.Y Regalia Limited
				
6
Ang Sin Liu
				
7
OCBC Securities Private Ltd 				
8
Chia Soon Loi
				
9
Citibank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd 			
10 Tan Hui Song
				
11	United Overseas Bank Nominees Pte Ltd		
12	Phillip Securities Pte Ltd 				
13 Hl Bank Nominees (Singapore) Pte Ltd 			
14 Chua Buan Ling Alicia 				
15 Goh Kim San
				
16 Leong Woon Poh Terry
				
17 Tan Soon Kiang
				
18 Estate Of Yeap Lam Wah, Deceased 			
19 Sujano Supianto
				
20 Wong Yun Hey
				

300,000,000
218,963,998
99,736,500
95,996,500
90,777,000
70,000,000
62,290,970
50,000,000
45,289,300
40,000,000
39,731,500
34,130,000
32,247,000
30,000,000
28,000,000
28,000,000
19,800,000
19,077,000
17,203,000
16,764,000

11.72
8.55
3.90
3.75
3.55
2.73
2.43
1.95
1.77
1.56
1.55
1.33
1.26
1.17
1.09
1.09
0.77
0.75
0.67
0.65

Total				

1,338,006,768

52.24

Substantial Shareholders as per Register of Substantial Shareholders as at 17 October 2014
			
Name of Substantial Shareholder		
			
Chong Sien Chern Cedric		
Qumulus Pte. Ltd.		

No. of shares in which shareholder
has a direct interest
No. of shares
%
–
300,000,000

–
11.72

No. of shares in which shareholder
is deemed to have an interest
No. of shares
%
300,000,000
–

11.72
–

Mr Chong Sien Chern Cedric’s deemed interest arising from his 30% direct interest in Qumulus Pte. Ltd., by virtue of Section 4 of
the Securities and Futures Act.

Percentage of Shareholding in Public Hands
87.7% of the Company’s issued paid up capital is held in the hands of the public. Accordingly, the Company has complied with
Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.
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LIFEBRANDZ LTD
(Registration No. : 200311348E)
(Incorporated in The Republic of Singapore)
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of LIFEBRANDZ LTD will be held at AQUANOVA, Block 3C, Clarke
Quay, River Valley Road, #01-09, Singapore 179022 on Tuesday, 25 November 2014 at 3.30 p.m. for the following purposes:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.

To receive and, if approved, to adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 July 2014 together with the Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon.

(Resolution 1)

2.

To approve Directors’ fees of S$121,150 for the financial year ended 31 July 2014 (2013: S$106,000).

(Resolution 2)

3.
(i)
		

To re-elect Mr Lim Kee Way Irwin who is retiring under Article 107 of the Articles of Association.
[See Explanatory Note 1]

(Resolution 3)

(ii)
		

To re-elect Mr Lim Miang Bernard who is retiring under Article 107 of the Articles of Association.
[See Explanatory Note 2]

(Resolution 4)

4.

To re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP, as auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors
to fix their remuneration.

5.

To transact any other ordinary business which may be properly transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

(Resolution 5)

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution (with or without amendments) as an
Ordinary Resolution:
6.

Authority to allot and issue shares
(a) (i)
“That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, and the listing rules of the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, approval be and is hereby given to the
Directors of the Company at any time to such persons and upon such terms and for such
purposes as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit, to:

		

(ii)

issue shares in the capital of the Company whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise;

		

(iii)

make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that might or
would require shares to be issued or other transferable rights to subscribe for or purchase
shares including but not limited to the creation and issue of warrants, debentures or other
instruments convertible into shares;

		
(iv)
			

issue additional Instruments arising from adjustments made to the number of Instruments
previously issued in the event of rights, bonus or capitalisation issues; and

(Resolution 6)
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(b)

(notwithstanding the authority conferred by the shareholders may have ceased to be in force)
issue shares in pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the Directors while the authority
was in force, provided always that

		

(i)

the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this resolution (including shares
to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this resolution)
does not exceed 50% of the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares of
the Company, of which the aggregate number of shares (including shares to be issued
in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this resolution) to be issued
other than on a pro rata basis to shareholders of the Company does not exceed 20%
of the total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares of the Company. Unless
prior shareholder approval is required under the Listing Rules, an issue of treasury
shares will not require further shareholder approval, and will not be included in the
aforementioned limits.

		

(ii)

For the purpose of this resolution, the total number of issued shares excluding treasury
shares is based on the Company’s total number of issued shares excluding treasury shares at
the time this resolution is passed, after adjusting for;

(iii)

a)

new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of convertible securities, or

b)

new shares arising from exercising share options or vesting of share awards outstanding
or subsisting at the time this resolution is passed provided the options or awards were
granted in compliance with Part VIII of Chapter 8 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited, and

any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of the Company’s shares, and

(iv)

		

such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company at a general meeting, continue
in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting or the date by which the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is
the earlier.”
[See Explanatory Note 3]

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

TOON CHOI FAN
Company Secretary
Singapore
Date: 7 November 2014
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Explanatory Notes:
1.

Mr Lim Kee Way Irwin who is considered independent for the purposes of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited, will, upon re-election as Director of the Company, remain as the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration and Nominating Committees. There are no relationships (including
immediate family relationships) between Mr Lim Kee Way Irwin and the other Directors of the Company or its shareholders.
Detailed information on Mr Lim Kee Way Irwin can be found on the Board of Directors section of the Annual Report 2014.

2.

There are no relationships (including immediate family relationships) between Mr Lim Miang Bernard and the other Directors
of the Company or its shareholders. Detailed information on Mr Lim Miang Bernard can be found on the Board of Directors
section of the Annual Report 2014.

3.

Resolution 6, if passed, will authorise the Directors of the Company from the date of the above Meeting until the next Annual
General Meeting to issue shares and convertible securities in the Company up to an amount not exceeding in aggregate 50%
of the issued share capital of the Company of which the total number of shares and convertible securities issued other than
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders shall not exceed 20% of the issued share capital of the Company at the time the
resolution is passed, for such purposes as they consider would be in the interests of the Company. This authority will, unless
revoked or varied at a general meeting, expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Notes:
(i)

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies
to attend and vote in his stead. A member of the Company, which is a corporation, is entitled to appoint its authorised
representative or proxy to vote on its behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument appointing
a proxy must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at Block 3C, Clarke Quay, River Valley Road, #02-02
Singapore 179022 at least 48 hours before the time of the Meeting.

LIFEBRANDZ LTD

IMPORTANT
1. For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy in the
Company’s ordinary shares, this Annual Report is forwarded
to them at the request of their CPF Approved Nominees and
is solely FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

(Incorporated in The Republic of Singapore)
Company Registration no. 200311348E

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF investors and
shall be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or
purported to be used by them.
3. CPF Investors who wish to attend the Annual General
Meeting as OBSERVERS have to submit their requests
through their respective Agent banks so that their Agent
Banks may register with the Company Secretary of
Lifebrandz Ltd.

PROXY FORM

*I/We__________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Name)
of___________________________________________________________________________________________________ (Address)
being a *member/members of the above-mentioned Company, hereby appoint
Name

Address

NRIC/
Passport No.

Proportion of
shareholdings (%)

and/or (delete as appropriate)

as my/our proxy/proxies to attend and to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held at AQUANOVA, Block 3C, Clarke Quay, River Valley Road, #01-09, Singapore 179022 on Tuesday, 25 November 2014 at
3.30 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof. I/We direct my/our proxy/proxies to vote for or against the ordinary resolutions to be
proposed at the Meeting as hereunder indicated.
No.

Ordinary Resolutions

1.

To adopt the Audited Financial Statements, Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 July 2014.

2.

To approve Directors’ fees of S$121,150 for the financial year ended 31 July 2014.

3.

To re-elect Mr. Lim Kee Way Irwin who is retiring under Article 107 of the Articles of Association.

4.

To re-elect Mr. Lim Miang Bernard who is retiring under Article 107 of the Articles of Association.

5.

To re-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditors and authorise Directors to fix their remuneration.

For

Against

Special Business
6.

To authorise Directors to allot shares pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50.
and Rule 806 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

Dated this __________ day of _________________________ 2014.

Signature(s) of Member(s)/Common Seal
* Delete accordingly

IMPORTANT
PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF

No. of Shares Held

Fold this flap to seal

AFFIX
STAMP
HERE

THE COMPANY SECRETARY
LifeBrandz Ltd
Block 3C, Clarke Quay, River Valley Road, #02-02,
Singapore 179022

Fold here

Notes to the Proxy Form
1.	Please insert the total number of shares held by you. If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register (as defined in Section
130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50), you should insert that number of shares. If you have share registered in your name in the Register of
Members, you should insert that number of shares. If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and shares registered in
your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate number of shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and
registered in your name in the Register of Members. If no number is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate
to all the shares held by you.
2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a Meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and
vote in his stead.
3. Where a member of the Company appoints two proxies, he shall specify the percentage of his shares to be represented by each proxy and if no
percentage is specified, the first named proxy and is no percentage is specified, the first named proxy shall be deemed to represent 100 per cent of
his shareholding and the second named proxy shall be deemed to be an alternate to the first named.
4. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
5. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies together with the letter of power of attorney, if any, under which it is signed or a duly certified copy
thereof, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at Block 3C, Clarke Quay, River Valley Road, #02-02, Singapore 179022 at least
48 hours before the time appointed for the Annual General Meeting.
6. A corporation which is a member may authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing body such a person as it thinks fit to act as its
representative at the Annual General Meeting, in accordance with Section 179 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50.
7.	Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided whether you wish your vote(s) to be for or against the Resolutions as set out in the Notice of
Annual General Meeting. In the absence of specific directions, the proxy/proxies will vote or abstain as he/they may think fit, as he/they will on any
matter arising at the Annual General Meeting.
8. The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed or illegible or where
the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified in the instrument appointing a proxy
or proxies.
9. In the case of a member whose shares are entered against his name in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any instrument appointing
a proxy or proxies lodged if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have shares entered against his name in the Depository Register as at
48 hours before the name appointed for holding the Annual General Meeting, as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.
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